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Financial Highlights

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
(re-presented)
(851)
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET

Revenue I @N
— Continuing operations - PRI TS 341.8 341.4
— Discontinued operation - BRI EHET - 4.1
341.8 345.5
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RNRREE AFERF 66.9 16.7
Property, plant and equipment I E NN 209.3 2143
Equity E 350.4 286.3
Basic earnings per share BRRERZF HK25.06 centsi& 1l HK6.24 centsiEll

REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENT

BREEDEZWA BEER 2 WA

L/
e

2019

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

o

2020 2019
Z2IRF| CRNF
(re-presented)
)
Continuing operations ML £
Hong Kong &% 1.8% 27%
© Mainland China I 8.7% 13.7%
2020 2019 @ Japan and other Asian countries BAREHZHER 62.2% 523%
ZBIRE| CTNF ® North America 3£ 9.7% 12.1%
Continued operations $EEEEHK South America EE N 1.7% 19%
© Precision parts and components S 100.0% 98.8% ® Furope BT 13.9% 13.7%
Discontinued operation E#IHIZEH ® Other countries 2AE% 20% 24%
@ Consumer electronic products EFHER - 12%  Discontinued operation D& |HEE ¥ - 12%
Total  #5f 100.0% 100.0% Total 43f 100.0% 100.0%
REVENUE PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
KA OF THE COMPANY
RATREE A ERER(EE)
HK$’ Milion B &87T HK$' Milion E1 &8
500 — 4637 70 66.9
400 431.0 422.9 60 —
B 345.5 341.8 50 [~
300 40 =
30 [~
200 20 = 16.7
L 8.3
100 " ®.1) 12
0
0= 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2016

2017 2018 2019 2020
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$341.8 million, representing an increase of 0.1%
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$105.8 million, representing an increase of 41.0% from the previous
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$66.9 million (2019: HK$16.7 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK25.06 cents (2019: HK6.24 cents) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought upon unprecedented
challenges. Despite this, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
benefitted from the changed and optimised product mix, the rise
in unrealised fair value gain on forward currency contracts, the
depreciation of Renminbi ( “RMB” ) during the first three quarters
of 2020, and the waiver by the Chinese governmental authority of
the employer's social security contribution obligations from February
to December 2020, the profitability of the Group had improved
significantly as compared with year 2019. The above-mentioned
unrealised fair value gain arose from the forward currency contracts
expiring in years 2021 and 2022, which were entered to manage
the impact on manufacturing costs for years 2021 and 2022 from
the volatility of RMB. The unrealised fair value gain is a non-cash
accounting treatment, that had no impact on the Group's cash flow
or operation for year 2020.

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover slightly
increased by 0.1% to approximately HK$341.8 million as compared
with 2019. If excluded the above unrealised fair value gain of $25.5
million (2019: HK$1.8 million) on forward currency contracts, the
segment profit had increased to approximately HK$54.5 million (2019:
HK$25.4 million). The improvement was mainly attributable to the
above-mentioned factors.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For the consumer electronic products segment, the business operation
had discontinued in the third quarter of 2019, as discussed in the
annual report of 2019, the turnover and segment loss for year ended
31 December 2019 were approximately HK$4.1 million and HK$0.9
million respectively.

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2020 had increased by 9.0%
to 31.0%, as compared with 2019. The selling and distribution costs
increased by 3.3% to approximately HK$25.8 million due to the
elevated freight and selling costs at the second half of 2020. The
administrative and other expenses increased by 4.5% to approximately
HK$33.5 million, mainly attributable to the rise in exchange loss (2019:
exchange gain) from the RMB appreciation at the fourth quarter
of 2020. The financial costs had decreased by HK$0.6 million to
approximately HK$0.5 million due to the drop in financing activities
and market interest rate.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

In January 2021, the World Economic Outlook’s forecast projected
the global economic growth by 5.5% for the year 2021, which
was 0.3% higher than their previous forecast in October 2020. The
revised 2021 forecast reflected the positive effect of global economic
recovery. However, the shortage and price increment in raw material,
the appreciation of RMB, and the labour shortage in Guangdong
Province create pressure on the manufacturing cost of the Group and
also the delivery commitments to customers. Hence, the Group will
keep on utilising forward currency contracts to manage the impacts
from the volatility of RMB, and collaborating with the suppliers to
stablise the supply of raw material. In addition, the Group is enlarging
its manufacturing network by engaging more satellite manufacturing
plants, so as to cope with the growth momentum in sales orders. The
Group's financial position remains healthy and is strong enough to
finance our daily operation.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2020.

e Turnover increased by 0.1% from the previous year to
approximately HK$341.8 million for the year.

e Gross profit increased by HK$30.8 million from 2019 to
approximately HK$105.8 million in 2020.

e Profit before finance costs increased by HK$53.7 million from
previous year to approximately HK$78.1 million for the year.

e  Finance costs decreased by HK$0.6 million from the previous
year to approximately HK$0.5 million.

e Profit after tax for the year was approximately HK$66.9 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and components
segment had increased by 0.1% as compared with the previous year,
while the business of consumer electronic products segment had
discontinued in 2019.

The Group’s overall gross profit had increased by 41.0% from the
previous year.

The Group’s finance costs had dropped to approximately HK$0.5
million for the year due to decrease in financing activities and market
interest rate.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks included all term loans, import and
export loans, which amounted to approximately HK$11.3 million as
at 31 December 2020.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of bank balances and cash
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$85.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2020 was 5.4% (2019: 10.3%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s machines and equipment carrying
amount of approximately HK$3.0 million (2019: HK$3.3 million) were
pledged under lease.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$350.4 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group’s
trading requirements, the Group did not have any fund raising activities
in 2020.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 965 of which approximately 32 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately 928
were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labour laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, throughout the year ended
31 December 2020, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since
the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company and believes that this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2020, four regular board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each
director is set out below:

Attendance of annual
general meeting

ESSERRRREFAE
ERBERETHECE
BE_Z_ZHFE+_A=t—BLFER-

gEg Eﬁﬁﬂmmﬁam NEEEET
DA RS RALEAREE 2 F B REERR - I
ERRHEARDNR 2 BERE IR R R

—RREBEFRE - FFF 2 H BN
T

Attendance of
Board meetings

in 2020 in 2020
—E_THEHE —EEEWHE
Name of director BEERE ES RN BEESREY
Lai Pei Wor FEIE AN 1/1 4/4
Chan Yau Wah PR 1/1 4/4
Kung Fan Cheong LlEE 1/1 4/4
Mak Kwai Wing BEL 1/1 4/4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEERBEE
The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The A2 TI/xﬁW_Lu:%%q

Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.

(@) HIERBIARRAZERERBRLE
Mo W

(b) BREEREERSREEABZE
BB EHR

(0 REREEARAEETEENEER
ENEZBRNER
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, who has been serving as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years, has
confirmed his independence with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers Mr. Kung Fan
Cheong is still independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and will continue to bring
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below:

FEEXRR

RBPEFZRHBEERER - ARAEHET

EHFEHREZERENERLREHRE 2 M
LR c 2REENAHFERHETEERR
AHE - A A BERERALAENZ IMNEE
HEYMEBEARXE  IRFHEFE L
BRBERMEFRSCAB LG - BEF
P 2 EDlR M AR B AR EFE -

BE_Z-TF+_A=+—HIFE &
BRI Z AR el T

Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

BEZEHMERRESREZ

Name of Director EEHA IR E
Lai Pei Wor FEEE TN 1
Chan Yau Wah PRz 5 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1
Mak Kwai Wing EHK 1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 1

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Tsang Wai Lun (“Mr. Tsang”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 May 2019. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRESHTHRIFESEERZEEN
EEESEEMAE T - LNBEREERR
F 2 FE R e

BEEEE(EREDR_ZE—LFRA=
BEZTARRGRRWE - RIE MR
#3290 BARERBEZZT-_TF+-A
=+ —BHULFEEESTLR15/)E 2 5
ZEEI -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

(c) toexercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.

EXgZEY
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are independent non-executive directors. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman), Mr.
Mak Kwai Wing and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

¥YMEES

YFINZESRNMAM=2RKEAK  EKEH
RBIUFFRTEE - TR EEKBRILE
BRE(EE)  BERTERFHRE -

REER FWHEZESCHRT - REHE - F
MEZEEEXBE 2RI

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2020

—ETHEHE
Name of director BEEpE FHEES SRR
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE FE) 11
Mak Kwai Wing EER 1/1
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =] 171

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

¥R EecE2AERIIENT

(a)

AARFEEREREEABNZEH
PHERR R 2R - RFLARALIE AR M BB B
EORFHIFTLEHFHEER  EFS
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

() to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out below:

FMEES (@)

) BERIEEANITEERSRERAR
PHE IR A RIS E A X 8
B TR SRS R R —
B ERERANER B BETA
AFARE - FHBS

(9 Wt RHEREFTRAE MEENRE
RERMEFMSRMBERSE - AR
ZERPFEADBK ] - HEREERS
WK — 2 BRRENASEEE

(h) BEREMEFHEEABEANG2AE
BRI B T RF B

(i)  WERAEREEESEAKANTZE
REDEE ZHEHIERTNTE - 2R
TEAL BORREAMER « &

() BEZAENBREBERLERE ¥
THOEFEEREAEEENES -

REER  FHEEERRNTEZTZHME
MEBBIERAESSRLER - FHEE
SR RFEARAEERRREEAE
Z H BN BOR R A5 o

EREEASHM AR

RBERERTEBISE  REBAE_T
—EFE+ A=t BIEFEREFER S
DZEREEANBFHMEIINT

Number of individuals

Remuneration by band HrEN A8 B #8 B A 21
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,000/ 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C%2,000,000/% 7T
Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Mak Kwai Wing and
Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

REEES
REZESANHE—BNITES - FIENL
E(EE)R=ZBBIFATESEK - B
FERLE  BEREERTNIBELE -

REFER  REZEGCHET - RSH - 12
HLRBERKEB ZHFERENT

Attendance of Nomination
Committee meeting in 2020

—ECEFHE
Name of director EEHA REZEEERRY
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) BEM (£2) 1/1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 11
Mak Kwai Wing BHELE 11
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8y 1/1
The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows: REZEe 7 BENT
(a) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not (a) ZEALEFHTESSHIZEE - ALK
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience, BZTL(BRFEERRNFER - 5 -
educational background, knowledge and length of service) of e BERTELSR #HEHXSE M

the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the age, gender, skills, professional
and industry experience, educational background, knowledge and
length of service. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of the Board
are made on merit against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Diversity at all levels have been shown to improve retention and
reduce the costs associated with employee turnover. In a diverse
workplace, employees are more likely remain loyal when they feel
respected, valued for their unique contribution and the importance
of being able to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. Employees are more likely
to feel comfortable and happy in an environment where inclusivity
is a priority. Equality in the workplace is important for encouraging
workers from all backgrounds to feel confident in their ability and
achieve their best. The Company are committed to diversity at all
levels, including gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience. The recruitment and selection practices at all
levels are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered. The Company would identify and provide the relevant
professional training programs that will assist in the development of a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees
and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for senior management
and board positions.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board and will give adequate consideration
to this Policy including gender balance of the directors and senior
management and their direct reports, and its progress in achieving
its diversity objectives.

Selection of individuals will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry
experience, educational background, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected individuals will bring to the Board.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EERABBR
1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors 1. ESNRERER
(a) Criteria (a) %A

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, I m AR EREAEEES
the following criteria should be considered: B THIERIEHERE -

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to
the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time
to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

2. Nomination Process

(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.

BEEREBBE (©)
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)
2. Nomination Process (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Lai Pei Wor and Mr. Kung Fan Cheong shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 27 April 2021 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

REE N &

BEARFER - KRAEMN T/ A TZE
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T

Fees paid/payable

HK$

2 ENER

Services rendered FTi 1 2 IR 3% BT
Audit services ZERE 850,000
Non-audit services (taxation services) I BARTE (FRTGARTS) 66,500
916,500

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive directors. The current members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan,
Joseph. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Mak Kwai Wing who
has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision
C.3.3 stipulates that members of the Audit Committee should meet
at least twice a year with the Company’s auditors. During the year,
there were two meetings held between the Audit Committee and
the Company’s auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The attendance record of each Audit Committee member
is set out below:
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Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2020

“ECEFHE
Name of director EEpns ERZEEEERRE
Mak Kwai Wing (Chairman) BEE (£/F) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong HEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph Bk 3/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
review of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and reporting
process, risk management system and internal control procedures. It
also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company’s
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. During the
meetings held in 2020, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(i) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2020;

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2020
audit scope and fees;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. The directors ensure the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure the publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 47 to 52.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems
are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, covering financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes the setting up of a
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, protects its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. After reviewing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Board considers that the systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role in
monitoring the risk management and internal controls of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to
review all aspects of the Group's activities, risk management and
internal controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and internal
controls on the recommendations by the internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
by the Group are summarized as follows:

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures
that appropriate internal control processes are in place.

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit
team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Board
on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans for corrective
actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address any issues, non-compliance
or deficiencies identified. The team monitors the implementation of
its recommendations by the operations management and reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIVIDEND POLICY

e The board of directors of the Company adopt the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

e The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.

e  The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of
the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Company and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

- financial results;

—  cash flow situation;

—  business conditions and strategies;

—  future operations and earnings;

—  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

— interests of shareholders;

— any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

— any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the
Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends

may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period:

interim dividend;

final dividend;

—  special dividend; and

— any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2021 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") will be held on 27 May
2021. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication with shareholders, the Company
maintains a website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate
governance code and other information are posted and available for
public access.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition at the expense
of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must
specify the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

(b) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other RRBRRASIRSBEESLUIIZEE
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws, UTRRFSAATZAGME]  BRE—N
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and N—FRalENEREAENOERFIR ¢

regulation:

1. The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 64, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the Group
and has over 39 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been a director of Hi-Tech Precision Industrial
Limited since 1984, a director of HTP Industrial Limited (formerly
known as Hideki Electronics Limited) since 1989, a director of Cokeen
Development Limited and K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Limited
since 1990, a director of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a
director of Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property
Holdings Limited since 1997, a director of E-Dotcom Limited since
2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and #2 £8(7 1))
EFAHMRAF] since 2002, a director of Mars Field Limited, a director
and legal representative of F1 1L B2 E FHBR A 7 since 2010 and
FAMETRINER AR which was liquidated in June 2019 and
acted as a director of Technology Trends International Limited since
2001 and a secretary since 2009. He has also been appointed as a
director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of
Hunpex Limited, and a director and legal representative of SRAAZER
FORINABR AR since 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wah, aged 62, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is
responsible for the planning and management in production activities.
He holds a higher diploma in production and industrial engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in management studies from
the Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 39 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of HTP Industrial
Limited (formerly known as Hideki Electronics Limited) and K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of K. S. (China) Electronics
Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director of Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited since 1997,
a director of Technology Trends International Limited since 2001, a
director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and " & ()& F
BMRAE] since 2002 and acted as a director of E-Dotcom Limited
since 2009. He has also been appointed as a director of Sun Ngai
Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex Limited, and a
supervisor of SRIRZERIFEL(RIINAR AR since 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 66, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, FCPA (Aust), aged 71, graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences. He is also a Fellow of CPA Australia and an Associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Mak was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3 July 2017.
Mr. Mak has over 40 years of experience in the taxation field. In July
2006, Mr. Mak joined Mazars Tax Services Limited (“Mazars Tax") as
an executive director, was a managing director of Mazars Tax from
January 2008 to August 2014 and was a Senior Advisor of Mazars Tax
from September 2014 to June 2017. Before joining Mazars Tax, Mr.
Mak was a tax principal at Ernst & Young and took early retirement
in January 2004. Currently, Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00882)
and a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Previously, Mr. Mak served as the governor of Rotary
International District 3450 and the Chairman of the Tax Specialization
Development Working Group of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 68, graduated from State University
of New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds
a bachelor of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 24 August 2005. After working in the business sector for 9 years,
he joined the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985
as an assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post
he retired in January 2005. He has over 32 years experience in serving
the manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 61, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 37 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 60, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 34 years of
experience in the industry.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries were the manufacture and
sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads, synthetic
rubber and plastic components and parts). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 161.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7.5
cents per ordinary share (2019: HK2 cents) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 27 May 2021, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 21 May 2021.
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Report of the Directors

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
3 June 2021 to Monday, 7 June 2021, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the above final dividend of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought upon unprecedented
challenges. Despite this, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
benefitted from the changed and optimised product mix, the rise
in unrealised fair value gain on forward currency contracts, the
depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”) during the first three quarters
of 2020, and the waiver by the Chinese governmental authority of
the employer’s social security contribution obligations from February
to December 2020, the profitability of the Group had improved
significantly as compared with year 2019. The above-mentioned
unrealised fair value gain arose from the forward currency contracts
expiring in years 2021 and 2022, which were entered to manage
the impact on manufacturing costs for years 2021 and 2022 from
the volatility of RMB. The unrealised fair value gain is a non-cash
accounting treatment, that had no impact on the Group’s cash flow
or operation for year 2020.

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover slightly
increased by 0.1% to approximately HK$341.8 million as compared
with 2019. If excluded the above unrealised fair value gain of $25.5
million (2019: HK$1.8 million) on forward currency contracts, the
segment profit had increased to approximately HK$54.5 million (2019:
HK$25.4 million). The improvement was mainly attributable to the
above-mentioned factors.

For the consumer electronic products segment, the business operation
had discontinued in the third quarter of 2019, as discussed in the
annual report of 2019, the turnover and segment loss for year ended
31 December 2019 were approximately HK$4.1 million and HK$0.9
million respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2020 had increased by 9.0%
to 31.0%, as compared with 2019. The selling and distribution costs
increased by 3.3% to approximately HK$25.8 million due to the
elevated freight and selling costs at the second half of 2020. The
administrative and other expenses increased by 4.5% to approximately
HK$33.5 million, mainly attributable to the rise in exchange loss (2019:
exchange gain) from the RMB appreciation at the fourth quarter
of 2020. The financial costs had decreased by HK$0.6 million to
approximately HK$0.5 million due to the drop in financing activities
and market interest rate.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$341.8 million, representing an 0.1% increase
from previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$105.8 million this year, representing an 41.0% increase from
previous year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$66.9 million (2019: HK$16.7 million).

Basic earnings for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK25.06 cents (2019: HK6.24 cents) per share.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive
to minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
require factories operate in compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators. Emails and electronic messages
have replaced letters for most formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally. Further details are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be published
on the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s and the Company’s
websites.
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Report of the Directors

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, we have complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures that all staff are reasonably
remunerated and it continues to improve and review and update
regularly on its policies for remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. Customers are encouraged to make
recommendations with the aim of improving products quality. The
Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair
and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget
at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge to the
external environments and a number of forecasts and estimates. Given
the change of unforeseeable external environments in the industry, the
Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital expenditures
and working capital requirements when changing the strategic plans
to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition in the market. To maintain
the Group's competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership
strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 34 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management objectives
and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 162. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, before proposed dividend, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$28,297,210
(2019: HK$17,648,464) of which the payment of HK7.5 cents per
ordinary share was recommenced as final dividend for the year (2019:
HK2 cents). During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
declared and paid interim dividend HK2.5 cents per ordinary share for
the year and paid final dividend HK2 cents per ordinary share for 2019.
In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of HK$50,856,881 (2019: HK$50,856,881) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAIJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted
for 61.8% of the total sales of the Group for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 38.5%. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for 30.8% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 10.7%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Mak Kwai Wing
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Lai Pei Wor and Kung Fan Cheong shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Mak Kwai Wing and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 34 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2021, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENT

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, forfeited, cancelled or
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2020. Further details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEERA

Report of the Directors

EERROKEBARD 2ERZRE

B

R-ZB-ZF+-_A=1T—H" REFEHK
HIE GO 5 R BB D ) E35215 2 1R
EMFEZECMAEHRIIRESRIFIEE
SAIMERRB LB EERARTA
S EREOEE (EE R B 5 IS RGIFEXV
)z ST

ERAEBRZRE :

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FisRHEE - SORESMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s
beneficially discretionary issued share
owned trust Total capital
EHEEZ EARAREET
Name of director EEH R HEEESR AIHA e s gripA= s
Lai Pei Wor FEIEAN 28,152,000 *97,242,000 125,394,000 46.96
Chan Yau Wah PR 20,000 - 20,000 0.00
28,172,000 97,242,000 125,414,000 46.96

Note: MisE -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor's interests are set out in the section headed
“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

O RBREMAEZERFEN TXZIETERER
HAA LR KRR D 2 Hm KRR ] o

B EXFRBEIN  RZEBE-EF+__A=
+—H  REZBHFRBAEGEHIZEIS2E 2R
FEMEEZARB)ELMATEEE: - SIREZ
ETRHNGARRRBR  SEEEAD
A) S E MBS A B 2 B (9 S hE B AR 1 E 4
BETAERSIEE -

BREBERERAT
e




ESEHE

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:

ESTBROITES 2ER

B Bt BRI RARRE RO 2 s &
MR IREEMBRRME27BRE S 2
BEEEIN - NRBRAEE A EMREER
BERTENESFANES A ZEBIRKEF
FRFEWEAR QR Z B HEF M EUS H a8
2R MEFFETEEMZFEN A
NAHEEEAME AR R FARESEITL
ERR Y BEERANMEMEMEAER
ERHEER -

TERRREMALTRES REE
Ry zEZRER

RZZBZZEF+_A=+—RH BARAE
ERTBTHRAEMRAM > THALHEE
(WHFARREFTHEIETHABR)RARE
Z Bty RARRIR ) R A R IR R S B &
PIZE336IRARHENECMMANEARE
ZREmNMORRIAT

RAE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SOREREE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company’s

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

EE N

Ei# [EEN BRTRE

Name # EREEA AREFL  EREZZHA @5t ERle

Chan Yuk Lin (Note a) BEE (Mita) - 125,394,000 - 125,394,000 46.96

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note b)  Celaya (PTC)Limited (FifzEb) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.V.L.) Limited (Note ¢) (B.V.L.) Limited (FfzEc)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note d) WBEE (fid) 2,298,000 21,450,000 - 23,748,000 8.89

Lam Lin Chu (Note d) MEL (fisEd) 22,434,000 1,314,000 - 23,748,000 8.89
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SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Chan Yuk Lin, spouse of Mr. Lai Pei Wor, was deemed to be interested
in the shares.

(b)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor is discretionary objects.

(c)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (b) above.

(d)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section "Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERA

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is
in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then director
or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or a then director or a director of its subsidiary (if made
by the Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a resolution
for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at such annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

mazars

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 161, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
R ER (7o) 3t 0 A R 7

42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

REESEE

RRETFERERERMNEXHE - RA
BAMGANBRERNEAR/EEZNS
Ao ZEEHERRMIETERE SV BR
REHEAERBRERE MEMISHRES
HIEHBYNER - RPIEEE TEEER
AREPINREEENHERESFEFE -

these matters. We have determined the matter described below
to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our auditor’s

report.

Key Audit Matter
ARENSEE

Valuation of land and buildings

ITHRREFZIGE

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

AR E BRI 14

As at 31 December 2020, land and buildings held by
the Group were stated at fair value of HK$139,946,000.
Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the land
and buildings, including the determination of valuation
techniques and the selection of different inputs in
the models. Management has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer™) whose work
has been relied on in the estimation of the fair value
of the land and buildings. Therefore, the valuation is
considered a key audit matter because of the significance
of the judgement and amounts involved.
RZZZZEF+_A=+—RH  ESEREG2THKE
FUAATFEEIEA139,946,0008 7T - BEREFRIELE
AN R A G BREEE A GEREREETR G ARE
ZEANEFN, T REFT 2 AFEE - BEEEEINE
B SERBEEMGEM([EER]) - WEBETERG
R RETF 2 AFEE - Bt - HERRATSHHE
NEBEANEMERAERESEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESNMEERREETSE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of land and
buildings included:
HPE L METEEMELNBERETEF B

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the Valuer.
B ERD BT - se I REBIE -

— Assessing the appropriateness of the work of the

Valuer by making enquiries and considering the
relevance and reasonableness of key assumptions and
methods used, and the relevance and accuracy of the
source data used.

AR ERME ARG E TEN & B R E B S
RERHEENRASEN - FRANTERTAE R RIRE
MR R
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2020 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun

Practising Certificate number: P05709
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—BCEF —E-NEF
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT BIT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREEK
REVENUE WA 5 341,758,426 341,434,375
Cost of sales SHER A (235,916,193) (266,345,273)
Gross profit EH 105,842,233 75,089,102
Other income and gains HABYA R Wz 5 2,998,382 10,847,507
Fair value gain on financial asset BEAFEEFABRERZ
at fair value through profit or TRIEEAFEBERE
loss 16 25,460,232 1,845,132
Realised gain/(loss) on financial BATEEFABREZ
asset at fair value through profit CREERER K
or loss (E18) 3,044,252 (6,397,436)
Selling and distribution costs SHE RASSHAK A (25,757,253) (24,929,864)
Administrative and other expenses  {TE N H b & (33,518,060) (32,069,009)
Finance costs BhE R 6 (461,215) (1,094,930)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR R 7 77,608,571 23,290,502
Income tax expense i8S 10 (10,698,706) (5,726,998)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REFEKEEB 2 RF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BRI 66,909,865 17,563,504
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEEEER
Loss for the year from REBERIEREERE 2R
discontinued operation FEkEE 11 - (904,890)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AAREEAFIEREE
pi- il 66,909,865 16,658,614
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT PETT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RATEBAFGEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS =R (E5E)
OF THE COMPANY
Continuing operations FHEISEETE 66,909,865 17,563,504
Discontinued operation AR E T - (904,890)
66,909,865 16,658,614
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREEAFEERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS A8
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted ARG EE
— from continuing operations —HFBELEER
(HK cents) (L) 25.06 6.58
— from discontinued operation —HERIEEEER
(HK cents) OB - (0.34)
Total by 25.06 6.24
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_Z-_FFT_A=t—AILFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 66,909,865 16,658,614
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hth2mE(FR), WA
INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to BrEEHFsEZEZAR
profit or loss: 2R :
(Deficit)/Surplus arising from revaluation T REFZEH(ER),
of land and buildings BER (2,303,582) 2,430,525
Income tax effect TStz & 348,366 (677,720)
(1,955,216) 1,752,805
Items that may be reclassified HENSEHOEZES
subsequently to profit or loss: ABRZIEE :
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBRELEZ
foreign operations M W =5 11,148,763 (3,009,627)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ BB AREEHMEE
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX WA (EiE) 9,193,547 (1,256,822)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AABEEAFRIEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEWAEEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 76,103,412 15,401,792
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZB-_ZE+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WS Rk 14 209,271,544 214,273,903
Financial asset at fair value BAFEEFABREZ
through profit or loss CREE 16 10,287,424 680,000
Total non-current assets IEREN B EMEGT 219,558,968 214,953,903
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Financial asset at fair value BAFEBFABREZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 16 15,852,808 1,845,132
Inventories =& 17 63,641,315 53,620,905
Prepayments, deposits and other TE IR - H2e REME
receivables &0 18 8,793,822 6,100,225
Trade receivables FEUBRIA 19 93,102,825 73,167,064
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRIR S 20 85,709,850 51,505,394
Tax recoverable CIqEh e 5,441 =
Total current assets MENEEES 267,106,061 186,238,720
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FEfHARTE 21 52,030,114 36,254,341
Accrued liabilities and other e B EREM R FIR
payables 22 41,303,870 33,812,113
Interest-bearing bank and other ELRITREMEE
borrowings 23 11,345,750 12,040,876
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 819,027 1,460,865
Tax payables FE S 1E 5,998,158 7,682,773
Total current liabilities MENE EEE 111,496,919 91,250,968
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 155,609,142 94,987,752
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBER
LIABILITIES 375,168,110 309,941,655
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (ontinued)

RIZB-ZF+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—EEF —F—NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 126,216 939,591
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBBE 24,648,032 22,696,398
Total non-current liabilities ERE A BT 24,774,248 23,635,989
Net assets BEFE 350,393,862 286,305,666
EQUITY s
Share capital % 26 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves e 28(a) 323,693,382 259,605,186
Total equity U et 350,393,862 286,305,666

These consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 161 were  Z553E £161 8 At LA M BRERE R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 —ZT-—F=ZfA-t+=-HES=eHELR
March 2021 and signed on its behalf by: M - WH NIATRERESE

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FELE A PR &
Director Director
== 2=
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MEEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation  Retained  Proposed Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
8E EX
hx  RiEER HARHE  EMREG  RBRE  REEN  EERE  BRER
HKS HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-F-H 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *91,117,616 *(6,513,933)*118,143,875 *5,340,096 286,305,666
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 66,909,865 - 66,909,865
Other comprehensive (loss)income  AFEEHZERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERRES
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - - 11,148,763 - - 11,148,763
Deficit arising from revaluation of BB T RIET
land and buildings, net of tax JELER - - - (1,955.216) - - - (1,955,216)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AEERERAEE
for the year - - - (1,955,216) 11,148,763 66,909,865 - 76,103,412
Transaction with owners: HEFAETZR5
2019 final dividend paid BE -5 NERDRS
(note 12) (Rzt12) - - - - - - (5,340,09%) (5,340,096)
2020 interim dividend paid THZEZFPERE
(note 12) (Rzt12) - - - - - (6675120 - (6675120
2020 final dividend proposed B T TERERE
(note 12) (Rtit12) - - - - - (20,025360) 20,025,360 -
Total transaction with owners BERNETIRBEE = - - - - (26,700,480) 14,685,264 (12,015,216)
At 31 December 2020 RB-RETTA=T-R 26700480 *50856,881 660651 *89,162400 *4,634830 158,353,260 * 20,025,360 350,393,862

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of e REAYBERRRP EEREEERPLPE2E
HK$323,693,382 (2019: HK$259,605,186) in the consolidated statement of iR A % #323,693382B (=T — L &F:
financial position. 259,605,186/57T ) °
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MEEREEBR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (ontinue

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

Share Asset  Exchange
Share  premium  Contributed ~ revaluation ~ fluctuation ~ Retained ~ Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits ~ dividends equity
BE ES
Rr ROEEE GARE  BRRE  RBEE  REEN  BERS  ERLE
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
iy BT iy AT iy iy BT iy
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 89,364,811  (3,504,306) 109,495,405 - 213573922
Profit for the year KEEEH - - - - - 16658614 - 16658614
Other comprehensive (loss)income  AEEEHZEMRA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERRES
translation of foreign operations LERER - - = - (3,009,627) - - (3,009,627)
Surplus arising from revaluation KA T RET
of land and buildings, net of LERBE
tax - - - 1,752,805 - - - 1,752,805
Total comprehensive (loss)income  AEE2ERALE
for the year - - - 1,752,805 (3,009,627) 16,658,614 - 15,401,792
Transaction with owners: HEEAETZR5
2019 interim dividend paid T -E-NEPHRE
(note 12) (Rit12) - - - - - (2670048) - (2670,048)
2019 final dividend proposed Ba—S-NERERE
(note 12) (Ktit12) - - - - - (534009) 5,340,096 -
Total transaction with owners BRANETIRHER - - - - - (8,010,144) 534009  (2,670,048)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=T—HB 26700480 *50856,881  *660,651 *91,117,616 *(6,513,933)*118,143,875 *5340,09% 286,305,666
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RERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B aE &I 7BTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& ZFEBZHRESHRA
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR, (E518)
— from continuing operations — B ST 77,608,571 23,290,502
— from discontinued operation — BRI E T - (904,890)
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance costs B BN 6 461,215 1,094,930
Bank interest income HRITH S A (761,648) (285,789)
Depreciation of property, plant WE—M%E  BEKR
and equipment (excluding RE(BRERAREE
right-of-use assets) 4N) 8,544,249 7,071,413
Depreciation of right-of-use TE—REEE
assets 4,047,748 4,067,985
Fair value gain on financial asset BRATEEFABR
at fair value through profit or R emEEAT
loss BEERR (25,460,232) (1,845,132)
Provision of loss allowance on FEURBRIE R B 7
trade receivables - 254,979
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE BEX
items of property, plant and Btz (Wax) /B
equipment 18 - 55 (95,454) 4,400,004
Provision for slow-moving B ERSE - F
inventories, net - 465,776
64,344,449 37,609,778
Decrease in financial asset at fair BEAFEEFABREREZ
value through profit or loss DRENEE B 1,845,132 =
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEz(Em), wmd (9.361,768) 10,655,683
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  TBTFRIA - & R EAME
deposits and other receivables WokzEZ ($h0),/ (2,398,904) 791,151
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUS BRI 2 (38 H0), 8
receivables (20,392,798) 14,046,696
Increase/(decrease) in trade FERTERIB Z 00, OR4)
payables 17,621,849 (9,298,990)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued e B EREM RN FUE
liabilities and other payables 2380, CR ) 8,460,583 (13,139,823)
Cash generated from operations — (K& EBHELZES —
page 61 F618 60,118,543 40,664,495
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HERERER®

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontinued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt & BT BIT
Cash generated from operations — E&XEBAELE RS —
page 60 F608 60,118,543 40,664,495
Interest received S &S 761,648 285,789
Interest paid ERFLE (378,760) (941,621)
Interest element on lease liabilities A& & &2 % 83017 (82,455) (153,309)
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/ (B BREEEFGEH
refunded (9,307,323) 40,428
Overseas taxes paid EREINEIE (791,251) (612,844)
Net cash flows from operating KETEB 2R MAFRE
activities 50,320,402 39,282,938
CASH FLOWS USED IN REZBHZHERH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in time deposits with BB =1 A I8 B 17 3K
maturity over three months 2 180 (17,116,430) (23,340,000)
Purchases of items of property, BEWE - BE&EE
plant and equipment (2,553,236) (6,356,682)
Proceeds from disposal of items of — HEWZE  BEMEE
property, plant and equipment Fr15 5008 151,200 507,195
Net cash flows used in investing WEEB R ML FRE
activities (19,518,466) (29,189,487)
CASH FLOWS USED IN METH2RERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid BEfIRE 29 (12,015,216) (2,670,048)
New unsecured bank loans/ MERBRTER BR
revolving term loans/trust BHER stliEE
receipt loans £ 29 34,011,318 28,909,166
Decrease in discounted bills IR Sl 29 - (145,175)
Repayment of unsecured bank EEEERIRITER @
loans/revolving term loans/trust REBMER(EtliE
receipt loans I=EN 29 (34,706,444) (48,761,716)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAR 28 (1,454,008) (2,368,019)
Net cash flows used in financing BhE RS 2 30 S F R
activities (14,164,350) (25,035,792)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERREZEB 2
IN CASH AND CASH m/CRA) B8
EQUIVALENTS - page 62 —%62K 16,637,586 (14,942,341)
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HEEERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (ontinued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—ECERE —E-NF
Notes HKS$ HK$
BaE BT BT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) FHeRBREEEEBERAZ
IN CASH AND CASH ®i, ) B8
EQUIVALENTS - page 61 —2%61H 16,637,586 (14,942,341)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzReRkASEE
beginning of year THH 28,165,394 43,762,395
Effect of foreign exchange rate MEREB) 2 B - R
changes, net 450,440 (654,660)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HX&ZHERESZEE
AT END OF YEAR HE 20 45,253,420 28,165,394
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Its registered office is located at Units
2304-06, 23rd Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were manufacture and
sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
land and buildings and financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, which have been measured at revalued
amount/fair value. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2019 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year as set out in note 2.2
to the consolidated financial statements. A summary of other
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

2.1

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEEE)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date
when control is lost.

mEREREE

REMBRERBEANRRE REAEHB
REZHBEHER - WEB R B2 BREK
MEFEEARFMER - WRA -
S RREE -

PIESBARRIRZ &R  XHNEH
ARBERZAEENRARH 4
MEBEEEYZEIE - MBARZEE
BAKENGZGE BHEAH - X
HEAPTEZIEHIRR LA -

FE RS

HAEENH B AR < A EER IR
23 - BYRENAKEKRELZMNE
R ZIEFHIHE - ARERRFARK - A
SE R BT R R 2 RE(EE(E
TR - ARBRERKE A E 2 AR

e WREZ A FEEME R 2 EA
Z8 - DEENERTERALFBNA
NEFEAA °

AR E R E LB AR 212 HIHE - Rl
HEBSRNERREZ X FEERR
REEGEE HAEEEARERR L
AFEEZARBERMZMBRRZE
E(RERE) MEEAREMIFERE
SRR EEHIEE A ZREE 2 Z 85
g RRBEHENBRARREMEE
WAERZHE  SRBNERRIEE
EHENRBEEERAB AR HEREE
AR - BIEHIREREE BIE - RATHEB
RAVRE 2R E R B B R R
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material
and 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align
the definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an
acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees
to account for such rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. It applies to COVID-19-related rent concessions
that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June 2021.
The amendments do not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted. The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments in the current year.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 23 EMEERERZEEBNK
& 28|
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial RERLEGREUHHRER 2B - NEE
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised WERFRA T EESTMASER
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which MR AFEE MARERZ ] 1EIE5]
the Group has not early adopted. 2 BB RS LR o
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BEDFTERIZE395: « FIREENRE —
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 Phase 2 BAEMBREED B2
F4-79K16%5%
pAH|
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use 2 ARG EAE 165 BERZRALZ
ZIEFT FT5 /182
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 2 EBGIERIFEITH BITAKNA?
ZEE]
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual EAYGHMEED RS AEZR?
Framework 2 FIF2EFT
Annual Improvements to  2018-2020 Cycle ? BB MELED  2018FFE
HKFRSs B 6 S BUE 20205 1A HR?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as FESHELFE15R BEEIBEAER
Current or Non-current 3 ZAEET Bk IEmE?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 3 EFEMBREER  REE L3
175
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BAEMBHREELN KEELEERE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIORRBBD ARl A &
Associate or Joint Venture * SHERIZE285R 2 ¥ EE
(ZH] HE &
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 1 R-E-_—F— A Bz BRI F
[ BRI AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 2 R_E-_—_F—HA—Hskz®&ABZF
FE HRR A3
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 3 R-_E-_=F—HA— B z2EHRBRZF
ER-ESEE
4 The effective date to be determined 4 £ B EA A
The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/ ERW RN RERMZEIERT 2
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact BEANBREENBAEEEERE
on the results of the Group. BEWN:Z-X
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24 ERETHEBE (&)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —Tlﬁﬁmﬁ%_ﬁﬁmz/a\
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ﬁ}% Ffﬁj: BERBREZE
= HERIBENT] o
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) BEEERBAASEENEKRE

EE@LZEE 3(E B 18 7l
R BEBR RN TS o fiw
$§%I$%1§ESZD+%J ii]

benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to

the Group. RS B B £ TR AR & B
REEEB -
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) BEEEI )BT A L
person identified in (a). sk RS

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting
purposes, from the rest of the Group. It represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed
frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes
in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. Decrease in
valuation are first offset against increase on earlier valuations
in respect of the same asset and are thereafter charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged
and thereafter to revaluation reserve.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% t0 2.7%
Land lease premium 2.7%
Office premises 33.33%
Leasehold improvements 2.5% to 30%
Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 30%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of
a revaluated asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost except for
leasehold land and buildings, which comprises

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case
depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset).

Right-of-use asset related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at revalued amount, details of which is set
out under property plant and equipment paragraph above.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and
by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the
Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount
of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided
in Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions and does not assess whether eligible rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modification. The Group accounts for any
change in lease payments resulting from the rent concession
the same way it would account for the change applying HKFRS
16 if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to
all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics and in
similar circumstances.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory
FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv)
measured at FVPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 ERSHBERBE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST EE)
Financial assets (continued) TEEEE)
Classification and measurement (continued) SRS (E)
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition TREENEXERN D BERNREE
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the EEZCRMEEESERNANREYIES
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow MEREEMmEE - cmEEN B KIE
characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent RETGETEN DR  BRIEAREEK
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its BERZSMEEMNERERN - FELLB
business model for managing them, in which case all affected M A ENG S EEESE
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first XA ENE —EAFERSHNE
annual reporting period following the change in the business —REHHME -
model.
1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1) HEBEKAGECeMEE

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets EERMEERSS MM EKER

both of the following conditions and is not designated as I R 48 7E A ¥ZFVPL » Rl 32 8 85 K

at FVPL: REE -

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is () ERENESERXBAO=RRE
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual BE4mMEENREA LIRS
cash flows; and mE s &

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to (i) HEHNGKRREETBEBES
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and ReERhEe GLREREE
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BAGRREERE 2T L

pANE

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently BREBEKAGTENCREERR

measured using the effective interest method and are RABRMERESE  WEATRH

subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from B BRE RIEHERSEER
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation BEAMKZ MEBENESRRE

process are recognised in profit or loss. R o

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include AEBRBHANTENSRE

bank balances and cash, trade receivables and deposits ERRRITESRNIIES  BUWER

and other receivables. 18 R R H A EUIFIE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial assets
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which
does not include any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL
include club membership and forward currency contracts.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at
each reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance for
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the
credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information
( nature of instrument
(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors
(
(

=

<
=

geographical location of debtors
vi) external credit risk ratings

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial instrument, except in the case of Mandatory
FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

e the debtor's failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) it has a low risk of default;

(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

As detailed in note 34(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, trade and other receivables are determined to have
low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies the
practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 ERSHBERBE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST EE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items EHEERREMEE BE (&)
(continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset SEREZ THEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events E-ENZEHeMEEMTARES
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash RMEEATHEENSHIAR @ Z2
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a MEEAEERE - cBEEEERE
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about BRI NEH 2 nl B EUE -

the following events:

(a@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower. (@) BETATERALRBEETBRE
o

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event. (b) EBEREX ' HlunE s RS -

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual () EZXAHERADLREEIAG
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, HEREBEHBEESSNERER  m
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the MAERABRTFERAREKTEE
lender(s) would not otherwise consider. BRIER -

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fEZXARE R REM ESEITH M
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. MisEA -

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial () ARUBARE ZemMEEZE
asset because of financial difficulties. BTG E MK

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep f) USrHnEEs T EE
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses. RELEEERNEEERE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less
any estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been generally within three months of maturity at acquisition,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position, bank balances and cash represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as
an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at revalued amount in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance to the
accounting policy relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase in
accordance to the accounting policy relevant to the asset.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Group operates and generated taxable
income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

24 EXSTHHERME (&)
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial e WMERILHKIEAGBANHEKERER

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
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reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group comprises
sales of precision parts and components.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods promised
in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance
obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or
(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the

same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Identification of performance obligations (continued)

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the
following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of being
distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good to the customer
is separately identifiable from other promises in the
contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good is distinct
within the context of the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e.
an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as)
the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as legal
title, physical possession, right to payment, significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sales of precision parts and components are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding
any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a
customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

For sales of precision parts and components, it is common for
the Group to receive from the customer the whole or some
of the contractual payments when the goods are delivered
(i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions).
The Group recognises a contract liability until it is recognised
as revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the contract
liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest
expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits in the consolidated
statement of change in equity, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the
award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-
market vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting
period, the number of share options that is expected to vest
ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of review, with a corresponding adjustment
to the reserve within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the
minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the
unmodified award, provided as the original terms of the award
are met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of
modification, is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. Share-based payment transactions
in which the Company grants share options to subsidiaries’
employees are accounted for as an increase in value of
investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position which is eliminated on consolidation.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the services.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
Hong Kong for all of its eligible employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTHEHRBE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
by entities in the Group at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date of the transactions first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the consolidated income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into Hong
Kong dollars, the presentation currency. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period
and their income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at the average exchange rates. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working
capital is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have
been in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the
inventory ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of the carrying value of
the aged inventory items with the respective net realisable
value. The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is
required to be made in the consolidated financial statements
for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition, physical
counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in
order to determine whether any allowance needs to be made
in respect of obsolete and defective inventories identified.

3.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries has
suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and
follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting policies.
The assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the adjustments of
their carrying amounts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment/right-
of-use assets

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts of the relevant property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets or the respective
cash generating units (“CGU"”) to which the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets belong, which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. If
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the relevant assets or the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or the CGU for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or there is a downward
revision of future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable
changes in facts and circumstances, an additional impairment
loss may arise. At 31 December 2020, no impairment losses
have been recognised for property, plant and equipment
(2019: HK$338,128 on property, plant and equipment in
consumer electronic products segment). The carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment were HK$209,271,544 (2019:
HK$214,273,903).

FEEsH A KAl (2

TEE T2 EBZXKF ()

REREBWRIERIE

AEERESGHENEICRTFT
ERIBARZRAETRE - W1
BB RIS R LR B0 2 5| HE
WEEB AR 2 REATIRIE » 775RHE
MIBBEFHECR - EFGAREA
EXATRSRE(QERNKE) Rt
FEERRE - RERRARMBRR
B2 BHE T EREBEL - U
SUABEEIREE -

M BERRE ERAREEZ
B

EEREZHEECHEAMTHEDE
E REEREAEEEEMBSR
CELAEM(REELEN]) 2RI
E$5E AFEABEEQATEEREE
BAZEB=E - WEEADRER—E
BEMRERE  BIZARMERIEEMBTH
AR EIS5E o W T eefdst @RI EE 2T
el ¢ IAEEEETEENBR
SEEEMN ZAINOSHEE o FHREER
BERAEBEGFTEHEEAEEEE
SR EAEM ARRERERAE
ZHTREGTERE - IR ERTIREE
AT EERHAERTAAERRIIESTRE
HETMEESRESELESBN 2 FTERR
ZTEHE - EEBARKRESRELR
TEHR - kAN EE RER TR TFEE)
M TNARRMF RS RE  BIAJgEE
ERINREEE  BE T _TF+—
B=+—H &YX  BEKEER
BREEBE(ZZ—NF: ETHER
BRlZ2ME  BERZREZREBES
338,128 L) - W% - MERREREZ
BR [ 8 /5209,271,54478 0 ( —ZF — 1L
£ : 214,273,903/ 7T) °

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020




SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in
the consolidated statement of financial position, which are
assessed annually by management with reference to valuations
performed by independent professionally qualified valuer. In
determining the revalued amounts, the valuer has based on the
method of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuations is reflective of the current market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December
2020 were HK$139,946,000 (2019: HK$144,095,000).

Valuation of financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL have been valued based
on market-observable data to the extend it is available.
The valuation requires the Group to exercise judgement to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs associated with the investment. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has financial assets at FVPL of approximately
HK$25,460,232 (2019: HK$1,845,132). Details of the
techniques and inputs used in the valuation are set out in note
33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in
note 34(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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BRE BT R ORI E R
HEERMABBRGEERE KRZE=F
F+—A=+—8 ' KEEFHEFVPL
2B ER25,460,2328 (=T —
JUEE ¢+ 1,845,1327870) @ Z{HEBAZK
B REEREZFBERRGE M IEHRE
FizE33(a) °

FHFEBR 2 ERRE

NEBEEE RS ERASE KRR
(BREEYERKIBHBER)HHER
REMEKERTEREIEEE - ArhF Kk
BETREEM  Z M EEHEANAER
MELER  BEMBBERESERE
HRMAEMHGE - BERHHERGHER
B - ZEEBERW R E M EWIRTE
MEREE - TEHEEEEAEERD
FEBRRMB AR FEBRNRE Y
TEEREMITE34(C) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION REsHESR

For management purposes, the Group is organised into EAWMER  AEEKRRBRESHERS
business units based on its products and has two (2019: three) DEHEREMN  BATME(ZZE—1
reportable operating segments as follows: F o Zfl) AR ELE S

(a) the precision parts and components segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of precision parts and
components comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and
plastic components and parts; and

(b) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income
and expense items.

Management, the chief operating decision makers, monitors
the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment results, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that bank interest income and
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the cost of sales and are eliminated on consolidation.

() BETHHERERERHE
BERTHME - SRR AR
BREBEHN : R

(b) #BAREMER BHEAKEEED
KRERBARNBARZHIEE -

EEE(ERRERREB)HAKEEK
BB EBORIEITES  MELEA
FAERDBERKRBEFEIREK - 78
BIREBAIRE DR EXE(HBEH
BB ELERBANEMNZEE) TIA
A - RFRABRBRBATG R EBUARE
B Z BB AR Z 5T E - HESRTTA B
ALRERARTBERZAE -

REDFEIHE LB IS EHERAHE
17 WEHRAREH -
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFBERE)

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZEF+-A=+—HLEE
Precision
parts and Corporate
components and others Total
BERTHMY BEREM Fo
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT
Segment revenue: iU ONE
Sales to external customers IR P HE 341,758,426 = 341,758,426
Reportable segment revenue D EREBARIA
and revenue 341,758,426 - 341,758,426
Segment results DEEE 79,975,571 (2,667,433) 77,308,138
Reconciliation: GEEN -
Bank interest income SRITHI B U A 761,648
Finance costs RN (461,215)
Profit before tax B A5 A A 77,608,571

Other segment information:  Ht2EEH :
Other income and gains, net of  E MU A RIS - & H UL

foreign exchange gain EREE 1,968,811 267,923 2,236,734
Depreciation of property, plant ME-—W% BENMERE

and equipment (excluding right- (B EREEE)

of-use assets) (7,785,153) (759,096) (8,544,249)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets #r& —(FREELE (921,821) (3,125,927) (4,047,748)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of HEWE ME R&E 2

property, plant (B518)/ Btk 55

and equipment, net (55,746) 151,200 95,454
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation T REFER RS

of land and buildings (B518)5T A/ (30BR)

credited/(debited) to other Hi2mEmb A

comprehensive income 373,231 (2,676,813) (2,303,582)
Lease payments under short-term EHIFAERAE 2

leases on office premises HEFIE (63,946) (137,712) (201,658)
Lease payments under low-value [KEBEEEZHEFE

asset leases (1,693) - (1,693)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net B, (&), Uz 558 (8,170,123) 158,063 (8,012,060)
Capital expenditure BARRFX (2,530,886) (22,350) (2,553,236)
Fair value gain on financial asset at XA FBET AIEZHERE 2

fair value through profit or loss A TE @z 25,460,232 - 25,460,232
Realised gain on financial asset at #ZAFEBET AEREZ

fair value through profit or loss B2 #IR Iz 3,044,252 - 3,044,252
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RENHE

Year ended 31 December 2019

BHE_T—

i-e=1C )
NE+TZRA=+—BIFE

Discontinued

operation
Continuing operations BA&IE
REICEES R
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components  and others Sub-total products Total
BETHY  BEREM Nt EFEEmM et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT PBIT BT
Segment revenue: DEWA :
Sales to external HINEPIHE
customers 341,434,375 - 341,434,375 4,146,522 345,580,897
Reportable segment DIEBEWARBA
revenue and revenue 341,434,375 — 341,434,375 4,146,522 345,580,897
Segment results DEEE 27,218,464  (3,117,880) 24,100,584 (905,831) 23,194,753
Reconciliation: SHE
Bank interest income RITABIA 284,848 941 285,789
Finance costs BMEKA (1,094,930) - (1,094,930
Profit before tax BBIATER 23,290,502 (904,890) 22,385,612
Other segment Hittp &R
information:
Other income and gains, E AU A RIS - B
net of foreign exchange B} Uiz F58
gain 6,597,795 40,464 6,638,259 14,586 6,652,845
Depreciation of property, & —¥% BE K&
plant and equipment FiE(RERAEE
(excluding right-of-use &)
assets) (7,017,567) (53,846) (7,071,413) - (7,071,413)
Depreciation of right-of- #7& —{FAELE
use assets (959,814) (3,108,171) (4,067,985) - (4,067,985)
Loss on disposal of items HEWE  BE &
of property, plant and R EE 8
equipment, net (4,400,004) - (4,400,004) - (4,400,004)
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESBERE)

Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued) BE_E—NFt+-_A=+—HItEE
(&)
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations BRIE
B ES REET
Precision Consumer
parts and Corporate electronic
components  and others Sub-total products Total
BERTHE B REM N BEFHEM st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other segment HitvpBER (&)
information: (continued)
Provision for slow-moving s H1F & BlE  F58

inventories, net (465,776) - (465,776) — (465,776)
Provision for loss e BRI R B

allowance on trade

receivables (254,979) - (254,979) — (254,979)
Surplus/(deficit) on THIREFER/Z

revaluation of land Bt/ (B#E)

and buildings credited/ &t A/ (F0ER) Efb

(debited) to other ZEKA

comprehensive income 3,255,095 (824,570) 2,430,525 - 2,430,525
Lease payments under  RHIEEHAZE

short-term leases on W5 2 B EFRIE

office premises and

factories (810,282) (187,601) (997,883) (41,029) (1,038,912)
Lease payments under  KEEEEZHE

low-value asset leases I (31,033) - (31,033) = (31,033)
Foreign exchange gain/  FEH Uz, (E518)-

(loss), net FEE 3,964,279 (39,879) 3,924,400 39,213 3,963,613
Capital expenditure N (6,304,920) (51,762) (6,356,682) - (6,356,682)
Fair value gain on financial RAFEET AR

asset at fair value B2 AT EEKE

through profit or loss 1,845,132 - 1,845,132 — 1,845,132
Realised loss on financial & AFEEARZ

asset at fair value IR EZEER

through profit or loss (6,397,436) - (6,397,436) - (6,397,436)
Information about a major customer TEEFER
Revenue of HK$131,489,938 (2019: HK$103,981,691) was ANFF $£131,489,9388 t( =T — 1L
derived from a single customer of the precision parts and 4 103,981,691/ 70 ) B9 U A - Th 3Kk
components segment that contributing over 10% of the BEZELUDEN—RBEL » WA
Group's revenue for the year. SEHBAZR10% °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESBERE)

Geographical information HEEF
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) #HINEFKA
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations BEREXRE
Hong Kong B 6,038,240 9,339,505
Mainland China Fh B A B 29,746,629 47,568,797
Japan and other Asian countries BARR AT B =R 212,690,043 180,913,351
North America JE=M 32,936,499 41,731,088
South America EE! 5,834,690 6,428,479
Europe BOM 47,520,672 47,248,205
Other countries Hih B 6,991,653 8,204,950
341,758,426 341,434,375
Discontinued operation DRI R - 4,146,522
Total revenue U A 341,758,426 345,580,897

The revenue information above is based on the
geographical location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

A EWABERIZEP iR

e

(b) FRBEE

2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNF
HK$ HK$
BT PSTT

Continuing operations BELSEER
Hong Kong o 66,933,112 72,782,675
Mainland China Hp B K e 141,903,385 140,758,447
Other countries HMER 435,047 732,781
209,271,544 214,273,903

The non-current assets information above is based on the
geographical location of assets and excludes the financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

MNEFRBEEERREEME
weRiln  BEFeRRAFEER
FABGRRZEREE -
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

BRENE ST -

AREEWA - HAUA R am e 2 an

5. WA - EblA K s
WAIEAFERHES MM ERIFEH

as follows: T
2020 2019
—B-F —EFNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with BB R EZERE 155 EE KRR
customers within the scope of BEFEHNZBA :
HKFRS 15:
Continuing operations FEREEK
Sale of goods EmiHE 341,758,426 341,434,375
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Sale of goods BEmigE - 4,146,522
341,758,426 345,580,897
Other income and gains: Hh A Rz :
Continuing operations BESEER
Bank interest income HRITH BN 761,648 284,848
Tooling charge income RERA 346,924 443,929
Sale of scrap RERIHE 267,843 3,007,889
Sale of samples BmiHE 1,147,399 2,172,286
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWZ « BE K& E 2 K
plant and equipment, net ER 95,454 -
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 Was - F R - 3,924,400
Incentive received* BB K> 272,856 350,110
Refund of excess payment for REZNEREARERERES
“Employment Security Funds for the
Disabled” = 516,727
Others Hth 106,258 147,318
2,998,382 10,847,507
Discontinued operation EARIEREEK - 54,740
2,998,382 10,902,247
Total revenue, other income and gains AU A - HAb U A & iz 344,756,808 356,483,144

BRHEERZERERAR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA - WA RIS (&)

The amount of revenue recognised for the year that was AFEEBRAZMACBBIERFEINZE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year #B1EA4,095 901 (T —NF :
is HK$4,095,901 (2019: HK$8,706,430 and HK$165,130 for 8,706,430/ 7T & 165,130/ 7T 5 5l 2k
continuing operations and discontinued operation respectively). ERELERERIMEEER)-

* During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received an * HE_T-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLHF
allowance of “Granting Support in Respect of the Unemployment B AERRHeRERKE—E[ER
Insurance to Enterprises for Stablising Employment” of Renminbi KRERBIFLERTE MM HERR
("RMB") 211,654 (approximately HK$237,052) (2019: RMB145,840, 211,654 A R #(49237,0528 T (=&
approximately HK$166,258) from Social Security Bureau and other — JL% : 145,840 A\ R ¥+ #9166,2587%
incentives and allowances from Mainland China government of TC ) N 1 A B IR T Uk B L At 28 B K2 2 B
RMB31,968 (approximately HK$35,804) (2019: Nil). During the year 731,968 A R #E(4935,804 7T )( =& —
ended 31 December 2019, the Group also received incentive fund for hE B HE-_ZE—hLhE+=-_F=+
the steady growth of foreign trading for RMB161,274 (approximately —BIEFE  NE B BB WE —
HK$183,852) from Mainland China government. SEENINERREZ REIE161,274AANRE

(#9183,852/87T) °

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BLERZA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERARHDHAT
2020 2019
bt 353 —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT I

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ~RAFAEEZRITER KL

wholly repayable within five years FEXHE 378,760 941,621
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 24) HE8 BN (FFE24) 82,455 153,309
461,215 1,094,930

106 K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020




SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADEA
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ANEEBRT DG AR (FEA):
(crediting):
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Staff costs (including directors’ BETHX(BREZM:
remuneration — note 8): —BizE8)* :
Wages and salaries TITEKNEHS 87,551,136 98,413,434
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKEF B R
schemes* 3,485,360 11,694,758
91,036,496 110,108,192
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 235,916,193 265,879,497
Provision for slow-moving inventories, net #5717 S#E - F 58 - 465,776
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 1,029,639 1,169,887
Depreciation of property, plant and TE—M%  BELEXE
equipment (excluding right-of-use (REREEE)"
assets)* 8,544,249 7,071,413
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* heE—(TRESE 4,047,748 4,067,985
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net PEHEE (Was) - F5 8,012,060 (3,924,400)
Lease payments under short-term leases REHAERAELEEZ
on office premises and factories* HEE 201,658 997,883
Lease payments under low-value asset {K{BEEE 2 HEZIE
leases* 1,693 31,033
Provision for loss allowance on trade JE U BR TR (B
receivables - 254,979
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BMEMREZ
property, plant and equipment, net (W), E518 - F58 (95,454) 4,400,004
Sales commission HEME 6,380,151 3,175,630
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

#

The staff cost amounting to HK$67,544,707 (2019: HK$86,460,865),
depreciation amounting to HK$8,761,892 (2019: HK$7,198,100)
and lease payments under short-term leases on office premises and
factories/low-value asset leases amounting to HK$58,617 (2019:
HK$811,163) for the year are included in “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated income statement. Furthermore, government grant of
Singapore Dollar (“SGD") 73,807 (approximately HK$416,670) was
granted from the Job Support Scheme received from Inland Revenue
Authority of Singapore, to retain employment and combat COVID-19
pandemic, which was off-set with the staff costs.

Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China has announced on 20 February 2020 to waive
employer obligations on social security insurance (“SSI”) contributions
during February 2020 to June 2020 and further announced on 22
June 2020 to extend the exemption period of SSI contributions to
December 2020 to ease the burden of enterprises under the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic.

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

(a) Director’s emoluments

(i) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

7.

BRBLATE R ()

#

AEE 7B IHY%E67,544,7078 0(=
T — f|, % : 86,460,865/ 7T )+ T &
8,761,892/ 7T( —Z — L4 : 7,198,100
Bor) REBRERAZEEE,KE
BEEZHEHIBENEES8,6178T(=F
— N :811,1638 L) EBEHELE F
BRZHERAR IR BN AiRBhsEE
A FE 3T BT IR A 15 - 3T ISR B UR
B —F@R [EMFARETE | BT
3K73,807%1 13 TT(49416,6 707 7T ) * 3K
B AREE TRAY -

BB ¥EFCOVID- 19 B2 2 th
EAREMEANERMLSREIR
—E-TF A+ HAMRRLER
—E-TE_AFANAGAERBEZ
HHR RER_BE_EFA=_1+=HF
AEBEBRRERATEH T _TF+
—AE-

FHRESENESN

RIE_E RGN BB 2 RHEGI TR E ]
BrEZEMEWT

(a) EEME

() BYHHTEE
AEEAXN FEILIERIT
BEx28E:

2020 2019

—EIEF —ENF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Kung Fan Cheong LES 333,936 333,936
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph &3 333,936 333,936
Mak Kwai Wing BEL 333,936 333,936
1,001,808 1,001,808

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

AEFEE AL EEN T EILIERT
EX2HEMME(ZF -5
) o

/A
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8.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Director’s emoluments (continued)

(ii) Executive directors

SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

8. REESEENEN®)

(a)

EEMe#)

(i) BITEE

Contributions
to retirement

Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus schemes allowances remuneration
RIKER
e F&  BEBRA SRR HtRl mEm
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2020 it i 222
Executive directors: #H{T=% :
Lai Pei Wor R - 2,689,362 827,496 18,000 4,463 3,539,321
Chan Yau Wah — Bik#E - 800,800 - - 33,685 834,485
- 3,490,162 827,496 18,000 38,148 4,373,806
2019 —E-NF
Executive directors: #i{7£% :
Lai Pei Wor FBIEA - 2,689,362 795,668 18,000 50,000 3,553,030
Chan Yau Wah BRRE = 815,100 = - 50,000 865,100
- 3,504,462 795,668 18,000 100,000 4,418,130
There was no arrangement under which a director NREBRAVEEESKTETHA
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any BMEXEENETAE -
remuneration during the year.
(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour (b) LEEASBZACER X8
of directors MERHMRS
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in RATRANEE AL EE]L KT
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered EUBEEATSZAZER EE
into or subsisted during the year (2019: Nil). RREMRZ(ZTE—NFE: £) -
Directors’ material interest in transactions, () EENRE THREHNZE

(9]

arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2019:
Nil).

R

REZR EFTRAR/NAFER
EARFREAEMRMEHE REFE
ARTMER— T EBRARRRER
ZERRS R REAEHARR
AEFHAEEFCREERNAD
BRAEERIMEZEAER(ZF
—hE &) -

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9. IfUuREHFES
The five highest paid individuals during the year included two AFEERAURaHEEREMU(ZE
(2019: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration —NF  WAOTES  FBEIR
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of EXHiFE8 e BN =AM (ZE—NF : =
the remaining three (2019: three) non-director, highest paid )2 EERREE ZFHF R
employees for the year are as follows: T
2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EA 4 285 & EHH % 3,357,796 3,353,558
Discretionary bonus [l=peFan 923,385 856,072
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFFEIE R
schemes 36,000 36,000
4,317,181 4,245,630
The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is xeHZEEERE 2 HBFTBARII
within the following bands: T

Number of individuals

EEAE

2020 2019

—EEH —E-NF

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 21,000,000 7T = -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7c%E 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7c£2,000,000/8 7T 1

3 3
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no HE_ T ZFR-_ZFT-—NF+_A=
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid +—HBIE - UEENTAEEAVRS
individuals and other directors, as an inducement to join or FEENEMEE EMINE - EAR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. S| H Hn B AN & B 5k 0N BB 12 Y 22 B ol Bt Bk
In addition, during the years ended 31 December 2020 and fE-FAN HEZZE-ZFR-T—
2019, no directors waived any of their emoluments. hE+—RA=+—8I1t ¥ESENE

LRI EN -

110 K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020




SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. INCOME TAX

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime was
signed and gazetted. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying group
entity are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on assessable profits outside Hong Kong have been
provided on the estimated assessable profits for the year, in
respect of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong, at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

10. FRBH

ZE—tFERBUBET) (FE75) 1501
BR([EHMEZR]) S| AFETHEMRR
HIE R RTIE - RIBEFI SR EMRAR
fl - A EREEEEE2,000,000/%8 T
2 0 F ¥ R B R 8.25% R At 0 1 A B
2,000,000/ 7T 2 ' F 1§ 2 5 %£16.5%
S TREMESHEMAL 2 EE
BB 2 m A BB IR A — T % 16.5%
i o

BBRINERDUSE O BRIAD A FE
T ERBUR M W AR BAKEEBHEIN
REEEERE RLATER 2 AT R B

2020 2019
—ECEH —E—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Current — Hong Kong NEA—HB
Charge for the year RFEEXH 8,046,683 3,551,650
(Over)/under provision in prior years FE(GBRE) iR (14,682) 1,182,719
Current — outside Hong Kong INER — BHAESN
Charge for the year REFETH 424,533 921,426
(Over)/under provision in prior years FFEGBE) IR EE (57,828) 71,203
Deferred taxation ERERLIE
Origination and reversal of TRMZEENES RED
temporary difference 2,300,000 =
Total tax expense for the year AEFEEFRIBERT 10,698,706 5,726,998

BRERERERAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FTBHi (&)

BRERRARB RERZEHE QT
_ME’JTf%l?iﬂ’]fﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁifuz%iﬁ
K EHRTRIAR X EEIR R X 2 B

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are operated to

the tax expense is as follows: R
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—hF
HK$ HK$
BT SIT
Profit before tax B 35 BiD& A 77,608,571 23,290,502
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% IREAFEFHE16.5% 2 FiE
(2019: 16.5%) (ZZE—NF :16.5%) 12,805,414 3,842,933
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates FI{SFE R/RALHl 2 £
regime (165,000) (165,000)
Effect of different rates for companies R AL EMFNEERKN
operating in other jurisdictions PRI R 2 78 134,136 245,856
Income not subject to tax RGN (623,676) (756,481)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR FIIE < B2 80,473 400,009
Unrecognised temporary differences RERZ BRIEER (1,435,501) (523,192)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 2 FH LA Bl AR #ERR 2 B T8 518
losses (454,769)
(Over)/under provision in prior years FE(BE) RS (72,510) 1,253,922
Tax losses not recognised REER 2 FiTEE 18 154,936 1,765,509
Others Hh 275,203 (336,558)
Tax expense for the year REEHIAR X 10,698,706 5,726,998
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 1. BEA L REEK
On 30 April 2019, the Group ceased the operation of the RZZBE-—NFEA=1H AEEEK
subsidiaries engaged in design, manufacture and sale of PEKRIETHBAREEFHERER
consumer electronic products. The decision was approved by LEBIERET BENHES FHER
the directors of the Company at a meeting of the Board of EmEE - WARER-_ZE—NF—A
Directors held on 17 January 2019. The discontinuation of TERHRESER L EGEFHE - =
segment of consumer electronic products was completed in =7 7% ﬁ%ﬁ @%Eu%%a‘llﬁ’]ﬂt%L
the third quarter of 2019. The results and net cash flow of the ERZZE-NFE=FEZTK - 8Z
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2019 =— ﬂi‘f’;ﬂ == EI¢JJ:EE?.§JJ:
are summarised as follows: KEXBHRERENT ¢
2019
—h&E
HK$
BIT
Revenue A 4,146,522
Cost of sales $HE B AN (4,688,586)
Gross loss E518 (542,064)
Other income and gains H W A Rz 54,740
Selling and distribution costs THE RS HA AN (576,410)
Administrative and other expenses T R E At & FA 158,844
Loss before tax FREA BB IR (904,890)
Income tax expense FriSfif sz -
Loss after tax and net loss attributable to B IEREE B RN FE R
discontinued operation (904,890)
2019
—hE
HK$
BT
Net cash flows REMIFRE
Operating activities 4R o ST B (2,027,101)
Investing activities KEEH (32,563)
Financing activities BEES (145,175)
Total cash flows MM (2,204,839)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

12. DIVIDEND 12. B2
2020 2019
—g-¥F -—T-NF
HK$ HK$
BT I
Attributable to the current year: RAFEFE
Proposed final dividend — HK7.5 cents — EARHIAL S — AR A7 5811
(2019: HK2 cents) per ordinary share ~ (ZZ— A4 : 2781l) 20,025,360 5,340,096
Interim dividend paid — HK2.5 cent XTI B — AR AR 2. 5L
(2019: HK1 cent) per ordinary share ZZE—AAF 1) 6,675,120 2,670,048
26,700,480 8,010,144
Attributable to the previous years, RERBER TS AEFERME ¢
approved and paid during the year:
Final dividend — HK2 cents (2019: Nil)  FRAIR B — A EBAR27E
per ordinary share (Z=2—h%F : |) 5,340,096 -
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the AREEEERIPICBBFARRA AR
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming BEKE FHEE - FR{EE ©
annual general meeting.
13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. X FEBEAFRGEERER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (BBE)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is FIREREEERRN(EE) JIRENR
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of NRHEA AFERER RN (BE) R
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary ANEERND BT IETE T @RS E =t
shares in issue during the year. H o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. XA AFEEAFEERER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued) (B8E) =)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per FREAREERF(ER) TIEE I
share are based on: SGiE
2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings/(loss) BF,(F8)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the ZAAA T #E A A PTiG %5 (B8 )
Company used in the basic and diluted FARFFESKREARREERF]

earnings/(loss) per share calculation: (E518):

— Continuing operations - BEREE 66,909,865 17,563,504

— Discontinued operation - BARIEIRE TS - (904,890)

66,909,865 16,658,614

Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary — ZANEF A E 21T 2 it F 15 T B

shares in issue during the year used HERARNGEEREARE SR

in the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) 7,/ (j&38)

per share calculation 267,004,800 267,004,800
As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted B BB R E R - N2
earnings/(loss) per share was the same as basic earnings/(loss) TEN T NFNERERNEF
per share in 2020 and 2019. (BB RGREERM/(EE)ER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - MERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and
landand  Leasehold  Land lease Office Plant and office Motor
buildings improvements premium premises  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
THHEE B EERH
THREF BE%E A BRE  REREE DERME RE KR @zt
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
31 December 2020 - 23
T=A=t-A
At 31 December 2019 and  R=F—hF
1 January 2020: +=A=t-8k
“ECERE-f-
B:
Cost or valuation A E 144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24,790,376 4,916,988 56,245,942 395,087,776
Accumulated depreciation  25H7E - (23,205,059)  (4,797,078) (306,354)  (69,580,891) (22,414,454)  (4,264,095)  (56,245,942) (180,813,873)
Net carrying amount REFE 144,095,000 28,848,576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,893 - 214,273,903
Reconciliation of carying ~ HZE=-Z=ZF
amount - year ended TZA=+-HIEF
31 December 2020 EREFEAS
At 1 January 2020 Z-F 144,095,000 28,848,576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,893 - 214,273,903
Additions - 670,913 - - 1,748,333 133,990 = = 2,553,236
Disposals - - - - (792) (54,954) - - (55,746)
Depreciation (5,350,721)  (1,706,612) (285,282) (278,770)  (4,151,144) (488,633) (330,835) - (12,591,997)
Deficit on revaluation Epg bl
debited to other Eth2EHA
comprehensive income (2,303,582) - - - - - - - (2,303,582)
Exchange realignment ERHZ 3,505,303 1,738,305 495,806 (1,486) 1,531,765 112,242 13,795 - 7,395,730
At 31 December 2020, net R=Z-TF
carrying amount +-A=t-8"
REFE 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078,567 335,853 - 209,271,544
At 31 December 2020: W-E-Z4&
+-fA=t+-8
Cost or valuation ARG E 139,946,000 55,252,493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5,050,399 56,245,942 360,417,094
Accumulated depreciation  Z:FHTER
and impairment loss BEER - (25701311)  (5286,554)  (280.256) (36,226,758) (22,690,183)  (4,714,546) (56,245,942) (151,145,550)
Net carrying amount REFE 139,946,000 29,551,182 10,909,654 410,353 26,039,935 2,078,567 335,853 - 209,271,544
Analysis of cost or KAREEH
valuation at s
31 December 2020: +-A=1+-A:
At cost AR - 55252493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5,050,399 56,245,942 220,471,094
At valuation fhE 139,946,000 - - - - - - - 139,946,000

139,946,000 55,252,493 16,196,208 690,609 62,266,693 24,768,750 5050399 56,245,942 360,417,094
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - MERRE &
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Land lease Office Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements premium premises machinery ~ equipment vehicles Moulds Total
THEE R EERH
THREF HERE BR HAE  RERES NERME AE BA &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2019 “E5-NEF
+=A=1t-H
At 31 December 2018 and  R=F—\&
1 January 2019: TZA=t-HRk
“E-nE-A-
B:
Cost or valuation KA fEE 147,994,000 47,440,871 = - 120,125,141 24,812,995 4,955,105 56,245,942 401,574,054
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z&F47E - (22,084,267) = - (85413941) (22,073,836)  (4,183,062)  (56,245,942) (190,001,048)
At beginning of the year - RER - FMEEH
upon adoption of KL ERE 165
HKFRS 16 (Note 14(@)  (HiE14(a) - - 11133305 996,963 - - - - 12,130,268
Net carrying amount REFE 147,994,000 25,356,604 11,133,305 996,963 34,711,200 2,739,159 772,043 - 223,703,274
Reconciliation of carying ~ HZE=Z—NF
amount - year ended TZA=+—HIEF
31 December 2019 EREFEAD
At 1 January 2019 WZZE-nF—FA—H 147,994,000 25356604 11,133,305 996,963 34,711,200 2,739,159 772,043 - 223,703,274
Additions AE = 5,323,053 = = 710,086 323,543 - - 6,356,682
Disposals & - - - - (4,904,749) (2,450) - - (4907,199)
Depreciation ik (5,345,765)  (1,315,923) (288,899) (306,727)  (3,124,545) (650,149) (107,390) - (11,139,398)
Surplus on revaluation BHERBIA
credited to other Eth2ERA
comprehensive income 2,430,525 - - - - - - - 2,430,525
Exchange realignment EiAE (983,760) (515,158) (145,276) 373 (480,219) (34,181) (11,760) - (2,169,981)
At 31 December 2019, net R=Z—h%E
carrying amount TZA=t+-A"
REFE 144,095,000 28848576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,893 - 214,273,903
At31 December 2019:  RZZ—-1E
+-A=1+-8:
Cost or valuation KA E 144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24790376 4916988 56245942 395,087,776
Accumulated depreciation  ZitTER
and impairment loss BEER - (23205059  (4,797,078)  (306,354) (69,580,891) (22,414454) (4,264,095  (56,245942) (180,813,873)
Net carrying amount REFE 144,095,000 28,848,576 10,699,130 690,609 26,911,773 2,375,922 652,893 - 214,273,903
Analysis of cost or valuation AiZAakfEEAHT
at 31 December 2019: RZB-N%E
+=A=1-A:
At cost AR - 52053635  1549,208 996,963 96,492,664 24,790,376 4916988 56,245,942 250,992,776
At valuation e 144,095,000 - - - - - = - 144,095,000

144,095,000 52,053,635 15,496,208 996,963 96,492,664 24,790,376 4916988 56,245,942 395,087,776
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ¥ - BERRE®)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end
of the reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent professionally qualified valuer. The land and
buildings in Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of market
value by the comparison approach, based on their existing
state, while the buildings in Mainland China were revalued
using the depreciated replacement cost method. No changes
were made in the valuation technique(s) during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. A surplus arising from
revaluation on the buildings in Mainland China of HK$373,231
(2019: HK$3,255,095) and deficit of land and buildings in
Hong Kong of HK$2,676,813 (2019: surplus of HK$824,570)
have been credited/debited to other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, their carrying amounts would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at approximately
HK$62,119,000 (2019: HK$61,440,000) with the original
currency of HK$16,440,000 and RMB38,386,000 (2019:
HK$17,125,000 and RMB39,567,000).

REE 2 Tt MAEFRIRES BRA B
BELERGEMEGETETHE - &
B REFREEAROTEEER
REFAMORE - MBI ARERZEFA
BMEEBEXNNEER HE_ZS-F
ER-_E-hE+-_A=+—HILFE
A - BREGER AL EELT(TE -
B it AR B K 9 R 4 (1 E AR Y
BEEAHK3732NB (T —LF:
3,255,095/8 7T ) R &S it RIEFHE
MmEL£RE(HEE2,676,8138T(=F
—NUEF - B8A824,570/8 7T ) B T A
BrEAZEUA ©

AN 6= [ £ 3 F AE 52 LA R S Bk AN R 513
EXRERBESIE - ERmED AL
B BHmEF - EE5EH62,119,000%
TL(=—Z— N5 : 61,440,00087T) * HFE
58 516,440,0005 7T 538,386,000
ARBE(=Z— N4 : 17,125,000/ T
%239,567,000 A R#&) °

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets R EEEREEREEER
by class of underlying assets is as follows: HFEEIAT -
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B3 BT BT
Leasehold land and buildings held Af&EEARBEANHEE L

for own use, carried at valuation, it MiEF  mAEH

with remaining lease term of:

— 50 years or more — 50F kA E (i) 66,730,000 72,450,000
Land lease premium THHEER (ii) 10,909,654 10,699,130
Office premises WNRE (iii) 410,353 690,609
Motor vehicle RE (iv) 101,344 182,419
Plant and machinery R E M as (iv) 2,926,291 3,113,590
Net carrying amount REVFE 81,077,642 87,135,748
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

The Group holds a commercial building for its daily
operations. The Group is the registered owner of
the property interest, including the whole or part
of undivided share in the underlying land. Payments
were made upfront to acquire this property interest
from previous registered owners and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land lease, other than payments based on
rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to
time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. V¥ - WERRE#Z)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) FHRREEEE)
No addition of the right-of-use assets was recognised R E N R SRS 5L 2 {5
during the year. BE °
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases EERERERNAENRZIE
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BT
2020 2019
—BCFF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use RAMEERMLGERAREEE
assets by class of underlying asset: HITEEM :
Leasehold land and buildings HE L RIEF 3,043,187 3,025,431
Land lease premium T EER 285,282 288,899
Office premises WAE 278,770 306,727
Motor vehicles VRE 81,075 81,075
Plant and machinery 55 B 1 2% 359,434 365,853
4,047,748 4,067,985
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set THEBBEZHBE O ITEBEHNELE
out in note 24 of the consolidated financial statements. BTSRRI FE24 o
(i) Leasehold land and buildings held for own (i) FEFERANHEELHE
use #F

AEEFBAE —EBREFIE
REEEZH A5ERY
XD (BRI M T
D EIEB DAV E T L) BB RD
BN MZAEAABA
BERMERER 2 KAEEX
- BREBERAFHREBRER
BEFENRIAIN - LEL
AREHECRFTEREX
NHEHE - BEBRERER
EMEEAENREASEE
By ] 7 2

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ¥ - BERRE®)
(a) EREEEE)
(i) tHEEEH

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(ii) Land lease premium

The land lease premium represents the interests in
leasehold lands held which are situated in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases of 50
years.

(iii) Office premises

The Group has obtained the right to use a property
as its office premises through a tenancy agreement.
The lease term is 3 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless
approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use
asset can only be used by the Group and the Group
is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to
keep those properties in a good state of repair and
return the properties in their original condition at the
end of the lease.

Residual value guarantees

The Group does not provide residual value
guarantees for the lease contract of office premises.

COVID-19-related rent concessions

The amount recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2020 to reflect changes
in lease payments that arise from rent concessions
to which the Group has applied the practical
expedient for COVID-19-related rent concessions
provided in Amendments to HKFRS 16 is SGD 8,052
(approximately HK$45,457).

THHEBTREMRNFEAX
EHEN T Em - MEE
HARTEF -

(i) BLZE

AEEEBHEARER—
EMEERAEZR M
EHIR=%F-

R % R 24
AMOBEEHRAE —ER
B BRIFES B EALLE
BRIERAERAEEER AR
AEEER UEIEAKE
HESEIFEREE

IHAEMEHEHEMS * K
SEEARHAEMERTE
REFHEEMRR - YRBEE
BREBMAEYMELOER

EFETER

AEEVERMAEMER
ERMHERMERELR

HCOVID-19B 1B < £
IR
KEBEB B BT B W
4 & Bl 165 2 & &Il &
COVID-19% {2 1 € &
RIEREREE 25 - BH
&R e M2 HEZEE
8,052 1N 3% 7t ( #945,4577%
RN E—T-_TF+
— A=t BHZEHRA-
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BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% -  BERRE®)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)
(iv) Motor vehicle and Plant and machinery

The Group leases a motor vehicle and plant and
machinery under leases, which was pledged, expiring
within 1 year (2019: from 1 to 2 years). The lease
of motor vehicle included an option to purchase the
motor vehicle at the end of the lease term while the
lease of plant and machinery transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the plant and machinery. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

(a) EREEEE)

(iv) TERBER#5
AEBEEE-—WIERET
HEECEN mMEEHS—
F( - NF - BH-E=
F)cAEHERSEMEE
HIRBEZUEREER
Mg HEEBRANOH
5 R RE PN 2 fa Ko 1B S 1) 7
g bateyFRE I ]
HEHA -

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. KB A T

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

TEMBARGFEWT :

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Company name operations  Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
B/ EMR ARAFERA
AR ER EXWH ERTRAZKRS ERAD TEXHK
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF ZB-®F _TNF
Cokeen Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100  Provision of
Limited Bt 10,000 7T 10,0000 management and
ERERARAR administrative
services
RAER RITHRT
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100 100  Investment holding
BB 2B 28T REZR
HTP Industrial Limited Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
(formerly known as & 2,000,000 2,000,000/ T and components
Hideki Electronics Limited) HERET M
P (BB )R DA
(AIBENETFERAR)
Hi-Tech (China) Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited &% 2,000,000 2,000,000 REER
RE(PE)REBARAA
Hi-Tech Investment British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited REAMRES  50,000%7%  50,000%7T REER
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

15. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. B AT (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Company name operations  Issued and paid-up share to the Company  Principal activities
B/ R ARAMERE
AEER EXH ERTRBERS BEAD TEXHK
2020 2019 2020 2019
“BCER “E-NF ZBIBE _TNF
Hi-Tech Property British Virgin Islands/ uss$1 Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Holdings Limited Mainland China 1£7 (ES NERE
RESBRES/
KR
Hi-Tech Precision Hong Kong  HK$1,500,000 HK$1,500,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
Industrial Limited H#% 1,500,000/ 1,500,000/ 7T and components
PEREIEARAR HERKTEM
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong  HK$4,650,000 HK$4,650,000 100 100  Investment holding
FRHEBRAA BB 4,650,000 4,650,000 7T REER
K & P Group British Virgin Islands/  US$1,238,545  US$1,238,545 100 100  Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited Hong Kong 1,238,545%7% 1,238,545 70 RAEER
RESBRES/
K. S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100  Investment holding
Manufactory Limited W 2% 2B RAEER
B (RE)EFHAERAA
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Uss$1 Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
B EZ AT Islands/ (EV (Ey REAZK
Hong Kong
RERBREE,
BE
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong HK$10,890,000 HK$10,890,000 100 100  Inactive
Factory Limited &/ 10,890,000 7T 10,890,0007% 7T Tmaz
HEERARRERAR
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts
International Limited Singapore 50,000% T 50,0005 7T and components
EBAARES/ HERKTHM
HINR
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

15. B E (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company  Principal activities
K/ ERK RARFERA
AEER E3iE ERTRARKRS BEAD TERER
2020 2019 2020 2019
B8 “T-NF ZRI®E _TNF
RAEPLEFERAF Mainland China U$$10,000,000 US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
EIREE 10,000,000 7T 10,000,000%7T of precision parts
and components
BERRERE TN
BRILmBREFAR AR Mainland China  US$3,000,000 US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
hEIRE 3,000,000%7% 3,000,003 T of precision parts
and components
HEREERE T
FRERR(RI)ERAR Mainland China HK$22,125,390 HK$22,125,390 100 100 Inactive
PEIAR (note i) 22,125,390/ TmAY
22,125,3905& 1T
(FeEi)
& These entities are Mainland China limited liability companies. @ AR AFEAEEREEAT

Note:

(i) On 22 September 2016, the registered share capital increased from
HK$8,000,000 to HK$23,000,000. The remaining registered share
capital of HK$874,610 is committed by the Group to inject on or
before 21 September 2026.

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. None of the
subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

() RZZE—R"FHLA-+-HB =ZMEXRH
8,000,000/ 7T 3 A 2£23,000,000/% JT °
AEEERFR T "FLA=ZT+—H
AT EA MR E AR874,61075 7T ©

BrK & P Group (Holdings) Limitedsh * £
METE B AR BANARRERE -
RAFE - BERBE AR BITEMNE

BEERA LXK ZARRKIBA
AEIBFEAFREEEXBRAKEE
EFETZRHM0 - EFLRR - REH
B ARMFAER - 5IRATE
RITE °
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=

BE-T

—ERFE+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

16. RAFEEFABHERZESH

PROFIT OR LOSS BiE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Club membership g 680,000 680,000
Forward currency contracts REIEEEH 9,607,424 -
10,287,424 680,000
Current asset REBEE
Forward currency contracts RAIEEEH 15,852,808 1,845,132
Club membership e

At 31 December 2020, the unlisted investment represented
club membership issued by a private entity. It is measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the club membership is determined with reference to the
publicly available price information.

Forward currency contracts, at fair values, held for trading

The Group entered into nineteen (2019: twelve) forward
currency contracts at a total of US$49,997,958 (2019:
US$31,621,958) for the exchange of United States Dollars
("US$") with RMB with the forward rates ranged from
RMB6.652 to RMB7.238 (2019: RMB6.870 to RMB7.175) per
US$1. The maturity dates of these forward currency contracts
are during the period from 15 January 2021 to 15 August
2022 (2019: 23 January 2020 to 17 December 2020).

During the year, the Group has realised gain of HK$3,044,252
(2019: loss of HK$6,397,436) arising from twelve (2019: nine)
forward currency contracts of a total of US$31,621,958 (2019:
US$25,913,350) for the exchange of US$ with RMB which
appreciated (2019: depreciated).

R-F-_FTF+-_A=+—H " 3FLWH
REELESERBELZEMER - KT
ERESMRAEEARTHEE - L EAE
RIZRNTEENZ2ERFAZIREER -

BATEEXZUEEHRERSH

AEBERITTAHB(ZE—NF: +=
MIETTETDHAARE(TARE])
42 1849,997,958% ji( =& — N F :
31,621,958k L) MR BIEH G4 - iR
HEXGEHSIETLH6E52ARKE

Z7238ARE(ZZFE— N : 6.870A
REE7T17I5ARE) - ZZ5RHAEES
HRBEEER T —_—F—A+h

HE_Z-_—_ N \A+HRA(ZT—1h
ZEF EE—?—?E'E ﬁ + EI:I:—?
—EFE+-A+ER) e

AER  AEBF+—H(ZE—LF:
NR)ETH ARE4L{ES,621,958%
7t( = ZF — L% : 25,913,350 7T ) B
RHE®EY  AARBEEETHEAE
(ZZ—NF: E5H)MEBEFHRK
%53,0442528 T ( —E— N EF: BEE
6,397,436/87T) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. RAFEEFABRRZEH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) BE#®)
As at 31 December 2020, the forward currency contracts did RZZE-_TF+-_A=1+—H %EFR
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The change in the HEEE AW TAFAE et EmiE
fair value of these non-hedging currency derivatives amounting Mo ZHIEHIMER Y OTA T AMAF
to a gain of HK$25,460,232 (2019: HK$1,845,132) was BEZEE Wi £25,460,2328 (=
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year T —J14F : 1,845,132870) W 2 #ERIE
ended 31 December 2020. HE_ZT-_TF+_A=1+—H1L2H
HERNA -
17. INVENTORIES 17. #E
2020 2019
—ECEBFE —T-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Raw materials 5= 18,420,867 14,997,161
Work in progress RS 13,301,315 14,405,859
Finished goods RURK i 33,140,083 25,870,112

64,862,265 55,273,132

Less: provision for slow-moving B BT E R
inventories (1,220,950) (1,652,227)
63,641,315 53,620,905
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no inventories R-B_TBER-_TE—HE+_A=+
carried at fair value less cost to sell. —B  WEEAGFERAFEBREE
AR o
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. AR RE - ZBERHEMEWR
RECEIVABLES iz
2020 2019
—EEF —ET-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments TBTFRIE 1,870,429 1,454,339
Toolings and mould deposits REZS 216,019 89,832
Deposits and other receivables e RHEMEWGRIE 6,707,374 4,556,054
8,793,822 6,100,225
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HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. B BRE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEUBRIA 93,357,804 74,244,453
Less: loss allowance B BRI (254,979) (1,077,389)

93,102,825 73,167,064

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss A & B A fE W BRTE N E th fE Wz T8
allowance for trade and other receivables is included in note FEANEERRE REREEE CERE
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements. SHGEE M EIRERMET34(c) ©

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of TASR A HI K pE UK BR TE 1 25 22 A HA KR %
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss IR Z BRI ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019

—EEF —T-NF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days NTRA 90,050,010 67,071,358
91 to 180 days At+—=2—8NA+X 2,915,897 5,921,791
Over 180 days —BNTRNUE 136,918 173,915

93,102,825 73,167,064
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

20. BITEBRRES

2020 2019
—E-EH —E—NF
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
Time deposits with original maturity over & = 1& B R & EI| #85E #3177 3¢
three months
- Continuing operations — R EEK 40,456,430 23,340,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER
— Continuing operations —RFEBEEER 45,253,420 27,861,009
— Discontinued operation — BRI T - 304,385
As stated in the consolidated statement ZF|RGARERER
of cash flows 45,253,420 28,165,394
85,709,850 51,505,394
Bank balances and cash attributable to:  #R{T458R MR & Fr{h
— Continuing operations i 85,709,850 51,201,009
— Discontinued operation —BERIEEEER = 304,385
85,709,850 51,505,394

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance of
the Group are bank balances and cash deposited in Mainland
China and denominated in RMB of HK$5,390,463 (2019:
HK$7,009,055). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China‘s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. Time deposits as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 represented bank deposits placed in banks in
Hong Kong. The interest rate ranged from 2.33% to 2.75%
per annum in 2020 (2019: 2.19% to 2.33%).

RIER  AEEEF B KRE 2 &84
BIEUARBEZRITEHRERSH
5,390,463/ 7L( =& — 14 : 7,009,055
BIL) e ARBTEEREBREME
B MEAR IR A B K B N B HIE AR TE K
#E7 HERINNEERTE  A~5E
TS R RS G N TS 2 RITHS
AR H IR INE o

RITRESTREEEMIBT EENL
BRHERTT  c RZE-_TER T —HF
+ - A=+ BN EHERAETERES
SRITHERITIE R MRS _TFHF
NEREBEH2.33%%52.75% (ZFE—H
F:219%%E2.33%) °
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HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. BENERIE

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RS BRENRIBEIREZ B A 2 iR

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DT
2020 2019
SE i
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 90 days N+RA 51,995,082 35,894,120
91 to 180 days AT+—ZE—BNAT+X 7,205 333,783
Over 180 days —BNATRNRE 27,827 26,438
52,030,114 36,254,341

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of

RNEREAEEN  2ER—BRER
HEIZATE—BZ+REER-

invoice date.
22. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. Bt ERHEMEMANRKIER

2020 2019
. —TNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contract liabilities (note 22(a)) a#xaAEMzE22)) 4,419,272 4,597,572
Other accrued liabilities HErtas 45,043 32,584
Other payables H fth e /I 6,966,799 5,686,485
Accrued sales commission FEfTSHE A< 3,931,771 627,115
Mainland China staff compensation FEAES THES - 303,008
Staff cost payables FEB TR 25,940,985 22,565,349
41,303,870 33,812,113

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HihENREAREREER AT =
credit period of three months. @A o
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BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

22. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. Bt B EREMEMARKIE#)
(continued)
(a) Contract liabilities (a) EHAEE
The amount includes toolings and mould deposits received ZeRmpREWEREREZe RE K
and sales deposits received. HERS o
The movements of toolings and mould deposits received RKEEANR T B HREERSF
and sales deposits received from contracts with customers 155 2 REBFELHKE WIEA
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows: B REBGEEZRS Z2EHMT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
At 1 January KR—H—H 4,597,572 9,388,683
Recognised as revenue R AU (10,464,485)  (23,368,271)
Receipt of advances or recognition of W ZI 78 (< 5118 sk e 7R FE LK 1B
receivables 10,286,185 18,577,160
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H 4,419,272 4,597,572
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there is a B2 -_TF+-_A=+—H
decrease in the overall contract activities and customer I BRAEERBRESAEE N
base of the Group, thereby reducing the amount arising REE Y TR B TE T =R IE 5K
from the receipt of advances or recognition of receivables; HRAEWTIENSRTERLD > B
while for the year ended 31 December 2019, the increase SHEBEE_T—NF+-_A=+
was due to an increase in the overall contract activities —BibEmn - RE N AEE R
and customer base of the Group and the negotiation of AXERERLPEZ I UE
larger prepayments. EmAETEMNKE -
At 31 December 2020, the contract liabilities that are R-_EBE-_ZTZFE+-_B=+—8"
expected to be settled within the next twelve months are S X B EEL137,751E T (=S
HK$4,137,751 (2019: HK$3,972,916) and the contract — JL4F 1 3,972,916/ ot ) TE EAR
liabilities that are expected to be settled after more than 2B T-_EARNGES AHEE
12 months are HK$281,521 (2019: HK$624,656). The 82815218 t( ZF — L % :
customer paid for the goods or services in advance and 624,656/8 T ) AR A BB Z 18 1
the timing of the transfer of those goods or services is at —EAAEE - BRATEZE R
the discretion of the customer. FEIE - WA RERTE EW sk RIS

FEBHEE -
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HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. FRBRITREMESR
BORROWINGS
2020 —ECEF
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum Maturity Amount
BERERE(%) 2HA ©8
HK$
BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.46-2.67 Fully repayable from 4/1/2021 to 29/3/2021 10,000,000
RRARER - EEF H-ZE-—-5—A@HEZ
ZE--F=A-thBEEEE
Trust receipt loans 2.42-2.65 Fully repayable from 28/1/2021 to 29/4/2021 1,345,750
EREWIEE N H-B--f-A-tN\RE
TE-FMAZtTHABREBEE
11,345,750
2019 —E—hE&E
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum  Maturity Amount
BERFMNE(%) FHA ok
HK$
BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 4.32 - 5.33 Fully repayable from 29/3/2020 to 23/4/2020 7,000,000
BRAHER—EER R-ZZF=-A_THhHE
—Z_TENAZT=REHER
Trust receipt loans 3.96 - 4.26 Fully repayable from 17/1/2020 to 20/4/2020 5,040,876
ERERIBE R R-ZT_TF-A++HZE
—ZEFMHA-THEAHER
12,040,876
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate AREFBEEZEEREBEE AL EEMA
their fair values. i
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank facilities were NR-E—FEFE+_A=+—H  ~&E
secured by a corporate guarantee executed by the Company. EEBRITEREEZEMARANRIE T
ZEERER
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24. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting

SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. HEGE

RAFEREFRERR - AREIRFIH
BHIHNESRENT :

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

periods:
2020 2019
—E=FF —FNF
Present Present
value Total value
Total lease of lease lease of lease
payments payments payments payments
HERE HERE HE HEHAE
st HESE SKIBHBET KI3ESE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BIT BIT
Current: E
Within one year R—FR 843,296 819,027 1,543,074 1,460,865
Non-current: FERE :
After one year but within ~ —F&ERRER
two years 127,430 126,216 839,187 815,067
After two year but within ~ BREEBREER
five years = = 125,723 124,524
970,726 945,243 2,507,984 2,400,456
Less: total future W BEFE HAE
interest expenses (25,483) (107,528)
Present value of HEaBEMRSE
lease liabilities 945,243 2,400,456

BRERERERAT
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BE_Z_ZH+-_A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

24. HEEEB#)
REBRNERRER L T HZIE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Lease payments: HEHKIE
Short-term leases 52 B ff\ 201,658 1,038,912
Low-value assets EBERENEE 1,693 31,033
Expenses recognised in profit or loss MRERERR X H 203,351 1,069,945
Lease payments: MEFIE
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6) Tﬂ%iéffﬂ%(ﬁﬁﬁ@ 82,455 153,309
Under leases REET 1,454,008 2,368,019
1,536,463 2,521,328
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRBE R 1,739,814 3,591,273
Commitment under leases FHERE
At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to R-ZEBE_TF+_A=1+—H  ~&EH

HK$34,222 (2019: HK$63,945) for short-term leases. AYERHIFA E5834,2228 0(—ZE— N,

£ 1 63,94587T) °
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BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. IR IE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the REEANZIELEFHBAENREEES N
year are as follows: I
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEASE
2020 —E-—=F

Fair value Depreciation
change on  allowance

financial in excess
asset at of related Revaluation
FVPL depreciation of properties Total
#RFVPL pichigicl
CRMEEZ wEZ
DNFEERE HERWESA MEE wst
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_FF—H—H - 872,032 21,824,366 22,696,398
Deferred tax charged to profit ~AREZERBRENG 2
or loss during the year BEFIA 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000
Deferred tax credited to other AREFREMEERAGT A
comprehensive income during 2 iEERIE
the year - - (348,366) (348,366)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-E-_FTF+-H
at 31 December 2020 =+—HZEEHES
RG] 2,300,000 872,032 21,476,000 24,648,032
2019 —E—hE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related  Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
7B 1R
nEZ
WERTE WS st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-hE—H—H 872,032 21,146,646 22,018,678
Deferred tax debited to other RNEFRE M2 EBR AR 2 ET
comprehensive income during the year {18 - 677,720 677,720
Gross deferred tax liabilities at NZZE—hF+=A
31 December 2019 =T -HZERENIAE BERE 872,032 21,824,366 22,696,398

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH

133




e R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinued)

=

BE-T

Year

ZEF+ A=+ —HIEFE
ended 31 December 2020

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

25. IREEBLIH (2)

EEREERE
HRARRELEVAEEZHBWT ¢

2020 2019

—EIEF —NEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Deductible temporary differences TR EREER 4,875,939 4,091,616
Tax losses MIBEE 41,627,042 43,385,519
At end of the reporting period ¥R EHIZR 46,502,981 47,477,135

Pursuant to Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised
for such withholding taxes that would be payable on the
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes at
distribution. In the opinion of the directors, these accumulated
profits, at the present time, are required for financing the
continuing operations of the entities and no distribution would
be made in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of retained earnings associated with these subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$11,749,000 at 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$6,549,000).

R B AR ERERE - RAEBRA
BERR RN IR E D ERINRIREH
FIRKEBIZI0%BURTET o 8
FTH_ZENF—A—BRER @
AR _ZEE+E+_A=1+T—HBENE
F o i FR B K B BR AN 4% & & Y B A
BEIERBSHE - BloEARKAIEH
TE - Fitt - AEEBEEERRPEAKR
BER Y MZEMBARR T NFE—
A—HREENBFFTD RS
TEHFL o

RZEBE-EBE+-_A=+—8 ' K&£H
jﬂﬁf&qﬂlﬂiﬁﬁzwgﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁé

DIRAR R BRI E A 2 BN TENFL R
FEFRIE - E2RARBAALZSR
s METZHRA T%—iri*%«% I AE A
ERERKBETMEDIK - RZZE=_TF+
“A=1+—8  WEERAETEARE
B A RIREBFRE REREAE
AT 4911,749,0008 L (= — L.&F :
6,549,000/ 7T) °
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BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

25. IREEBLIH (2)
ELERBEEE)

R=F-PE+-A=+—F  A%E
BEGREN B %R SHBA AR RP
Rl R RERBIRRE « MR EERE
HEHATAE B R R MV AR BT -
FU AR TRRIEERIB A © KT
RBEBANERALT

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses that can be offset against future taxable profits of
the respective subsidiaries. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised because it is not expected that future taxable
profits will be available against which the Group can utilise
the benefits therefrom. The expiry dates for unrecognised tax
losses are as follows:

2020 2019

—E-EF —=—hF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Tax losses without expiration 45 [ i 2 TR TR B 18 30,181,459 32,937,631
Tax losses expiring in: VAT @ 2 B IE S 1A

- 2021 - T —fF = -

- 2022 -z = -

- 2023 - T = - -

- 2024 - —ET_PF 10,447,888 10,447,888

- 2025 - _FhfF 997,695 =

At the end of the reporting period R EHAR 41,627,042 43,385,519

AR RS T E R K F S5
BRYE -

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. fRA
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares &v
Authorised: JERE
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,000 % &% &
0.10%5 7T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMRE
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each  267,004,800/% &% H &
0.10/8 7T 26,700,480 26,700,480

BRHEERZERERAR
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the

Scheme is as follows:

Purposes

Participants

To provide incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

any employee (whether full-time or
part-time), executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any customer of
the Group or any Invested Entity;
any person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity; and

any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

27. B RERTE

ARRERMR —_ZE——FHA=-+=
B Ak B BI(T5HE)) - FHEI8

2]
=

H

T

iy

REBARESERZHE
ATHAEEEL 2B/
K/ 1% B A S BES
BReBnEE RRAYE AN
SEETAAEEFEHR
EAB AR 2 AR
BRERQRDBEKREEZ
ANER -

() ANR7A] -~ HTAHE
NEREEAAEE
RRIZEEE (T
R - BT
B FHTEER
B IFITES

(i) MAEEEMFKER
RIS EMAAIRE QA
REHEMSRBE 2 E
I ftER  AEE K
ERIARE AR ZE
AEP MAKERN
EREINFE S = WG E 4
e - FAESEME
iy Sz & < A ALk
NCINE

(i) ANEBE{ERKE R A
MR E AR Z
EREE NS
fA] X B A &) s R/ BT
5B AR T T AR
BHEZEMFBEA o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for
issue and the
percentage of the
issued share
capital that it
represents as
at the date of the
annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities
must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period
for which an
option must be
held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable
on acceptance

Period within
which payments/
calls/loans must
be made/repaid

26,700,480 ordinary shares and 10% of
the issued share capital.

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company in any 12-month
period.

An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors to each grantee,
but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

There is no minimum period for which
an option granted must be held before
it can be exercised.

The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer with a
consideration of HK$1.00 being payable
by the grantee.

Not applicable.

SREPTBHRERMFE
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27. BB EFTEI (&)
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HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life
of the Scheme

Determined by the directors but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the ordinary shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of options, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the
ordinary shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The Scheme remains in force until 22
May 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
forfeited since the adoption of the Scheme and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
58 and 59 of the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of
the net proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result
of the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital of the former
holding company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings)
Limited, prior to the Group’s reorganisation in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay
up the nil-paid shares issued on the incorporation of the
Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to
record the increases in the fair value of land and buildings
and the decreases to the extent that such decrease relates
to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in
equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

28. RESERVES (continued) 28. f#EE)
(b) Company (b) 2F
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated Proposed
account surplus losses dividend Total
RAEER BARER e BERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—F—H 50,856,881 49,999,981  (32,808,667) - 68,048,195
Profit for the year and total REEERRAEE
comprehensive income 2EEBAE
for the year - - 3,127,198 = 3,127,198
Interim dividend paid (note 12) B HEIIR S (fff:12) - - (2,670,048) - (2,670,048)
Final dividend proposed B RO E (fEE12)
(note 12) - - (5,340,096) 5,340,096 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-RA=+—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (37,691,613) 5,340,096 68,505,345
Profit for the year and total ~ RNFEHEFIRAFE
comprehensive income 2EMALE
for the year - - 22,663,962 - 22,663,962
Interim dividend paid BRI E (5 12)
(note 12) - - (6,675,120) - (6,675,120)
2019 Final dividend paid BENZE-NERHRE
(note 12) (MzE12) - - - (5340,09)  (5,340,09)
Final dividend proposed BERERE (M312)
(note 12) - - (20,025,360) 20,025,360 -
At 31 December 2020 R-B=-FE
+=A=1+-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (41,728,131) 20,025,360 79,154,091

KR ZHABERTE K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited K H K& A &R
SESEHERBZEAEEFE
mEARRBAETARBZA A
BAAE B (FBEHEREE
B HRRMTE28(a)) - REZRE
RALLAR AR R 2 s M A2 B Fr
BITARBEZ R D258 -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying consolidated net assets
of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at
the date on which the Group’s reorganisation became
effective, referred to in note 28(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore,
less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares
issued on the incorporation of the Company.
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28. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

28. & (&)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus in certain circumstances. As at
31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, before proposed dividend, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$28,297,210 (2019: HK$17,648,464).

29. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

29.

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing

activities are as follows:

(b) R\I(#&)

BEBREZE-NAN—FQE1E
RARAEREBR TRAAR
BREBERAEKBIELDIK - R
—E-EF+-_A=+—H" &
ARIBBEERE-—NN—FAF
ETHFE - Al AR RED K
ZEBEEZRERER) A
28,297,2108 (=& — L & :
17,648,464 7T ) °

METHELE2EEED

AEBREEHEL AEEH T HE
o -

2020 —E-EHE
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Lease Dividend
borrowing liabilities payable Total
HERITR
Hitfe & HESE RS st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year REEEL 12,040,876 2,400,456 - 14,441,332
New unsecured bank loans/ L EIEIRITE R RIR
revolving term loans/trust BEER /R BEER
receipt loans 34,011,318 - - 34,011,318
Declaration of dividend TR E - - 12,015,216 12,015,216
Dividend paid BEARE = - (12,015,216) (12,015,216)
Repayment of unsecured EEEFRRTERBR
bank loans/revolving term BEHEDR ElEER
loans/trust receipt loans (34,706,444) - - (34,706,444)
Exchange realignment [E I 2R - (1,205) - (1,205)
Repayment of lease liabilities — (EiBHESE - (1,454,008) - (1,454,008)
At end of the year RAEER 11,345,750 945,243 - 12,290,993

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH
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HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

29. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

2. MERDELECAEEH (&)

2019 —E—NE
Interest-  Bank loans-
bearing bank  discounted
and other bills with ~ Finance lease Lease Dividend
borrowing recourse payable liabilities payable Total
BAER-
BERTR AR EH) EfRE
EtofEE HHER HE HEBE ERRE &5t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year RAEEA] 31,893,426 145175 3,771,098 = - 35,809,699
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 A ESBIHEEE
F16%; = - (3,771,098) 4,768,061 - 996,963
New unsecured bank loans/ ¥ EERETES /B
revolving term loans/trust EHER/ElEER
receipt loans 28,909,166 - - - - 28,909,166
Decrease in discounted bills HEEEZRD - (145,175) - - - (145,175)
Declaration of dvidend ERKRE = - - - 2,670,048 2,670,048
Dividend paid BERRE = = - - (2670,048)  (2,670,048)
Repayment of unsecured BREEARTEDR /BB
bank loans/revolving term BHER/ERRBER
loans/trust receipt loans (48,761,716) - - - - (48,761,716)
Exchange realignment [ AR - - - 414 - 414
Repayment of lease liabilites ~ EEHEEEE - - - (2,368,019) - (2,368,019)
At end of the year WAFER 12,040,876 - - 2,400,456 - 14441332

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and leases
liabilities are disclosed in note 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

EERTRHEMBEERHEABENES
B SRR M 5E23 24D RIIHEE -
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BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

30. COMMITMENTS 30. &I
Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated IR B ANMR A B TSR R A E At it 5 4h
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, the R4 EA R - 7N £ B I 8 F (0] & 2N &
Group did not have any other capital commitments. Zo
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BEAELR S
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AREBTEEIEAE 2R :
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT B IT
Short term employee benefits EEEERA 8,579,792 8,597,240
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRE AT SR
schemes 36,000 36,000
Total compensation paid to key SN TEEZEEEAE 2 BRI
management personnel 8,615,792 8,633,240
The above compensation for key management personnel of NEAREFRTFTEEFBAS ZRMBIES
the Group includes emoluments paid to the directors. Further NTESZHE - BEAESMES 20
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the BRIBENGE SRR zES ©

consolidated financial statements.

BRERERERAT
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

32. $RTEWNSE

RI|BERR - SR ITESERINREE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as wm
follows:
2020 —E-EF
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset at
cost FVPL Total
BBEREZ FVPLZ
SREE SREE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets as per BEGEMERTRZ
consolidated statement of SREE
financial position:
Financial asset at FVPL BRVPLZ S REE
— Club membership —2MeR - 680,000 680,000
- Forward currency contracts —RHEELY - 25,460,232 25,460,232
Financial assets included in BERBHTE  RE R
prepayments, deposits and other Hip MG IE 2 & /b
receivables (note 18) BE(Miz18) 931,024 - 931,024
Trade receivables FERERIE 93,102,825 - 93,102,825
Bank balances and cash firdar ) ek 85,709,850 - 85,709,850
179,743,699 26,140,232 205,883,931
2020 —E-EF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REHEA
ZERMEE @t
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated BEGEMBERRRZ
statement of financial position: SRAE:
Trade payables FERTBRIE 52,030,114 52,030,114
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilites ~ B&HEtAEREMEMNTEZERE
and other payables (note 22) E(PriE22) 9,547,977 9,547,977
Interest-hearing bank and other borrowings mRRTRAMEE 11,345,750 11,345,750
Lease liabilities HEBE 945,243 945,243
73,869,084 73,869,084
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to Consolidated

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. eI AEMS¥E &)
(continued)
2019 —E-NF
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset at
cost FVPL Total
REBHEKAZ RFVPLZ
SREE SREBE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per RELZATBARRR 2
consolidated statement of TREE
financial position:
Financial asset at FVPL BIVPLZ S REE
~ Club membership -EMeR - 680,000 680,000
- Forward currency contracts —RHEEAL = 1,845,132 1,845,132
Financial assets included in BEREATE &E K
prepayments, deposits and Hit W FIE 2 & /b
other receivables (note 18) BE(KzE18) 839,570 - 839,570
Trade receivables U ARTR 73,167,064 - 73,167,064
Bank balances and cash ROEBERE 51,505,394 = 51,505,394
125,512,028 2,525,132 128,037,160
2019 —E-NF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REHEKA
ZEMARE Bar
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated BEGEHBRAR L
statement of financial position: 2RARE:
Trade payables FERTERIR 36,254,341 36,254,341
Financial liabilities included in accrued BERETEEREMENTELSRHE
liabilities and other payables (note 22) E(fHzE22) 5,318,195 5,318,195
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings mERTRAMEE 12,040,876 12,040,876
Lease liabilities HEERE 2,400,456 2,400,456
56,013,868 56,013,868

BRHEERZERERAR
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HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 33. A EEE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured AR B BT mELERF135 : 2
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these FEEFEMREZ A TFEE=EZR
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis across HEEAFEEFTEZEERBESR
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS AR E R ERN RS SRR IR
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement NEBEZ D HEENREFESRME R
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that T EENRETEEEATENG AR
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs B M ABBESERERNOT :

are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—R(ERER): ASEEFEET
markets for identical assets or liabilities B ™5 ES
that the Group can access at the FEEESEEZH
measurement date; BORKETHE):

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices F_H EEXBEAAR
included within Level 1 that are BAREZS =l PN
observable for the asset or liability, HIE - F—HBE
either directly or indirectly; Z BRI

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or E=RM(REER) BESEBZTA
liability. S AR o
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BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 33. A EEFTESE)
The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities TRETEATEBEFENEEREA
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: & WIRAFEESERSE 25
2020 —m-mx
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—% et B=R Mt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
Financial asset at FVPL: RFVPLZ 2 RIEE :
— Club membership — STk
— outside Hong Kong — BBEEIN 680,000 - = 680,000
— Forward currency —REEBERE
contracts - 25,460,232 - 25,460,232
Leasehold land and HEFE I HEETF
buildings:
Commercial - Hong Kong ¥ — &% - 66,730,000 - 66,730,000
Owned buildings: BEETF:
Industrial — outside T —-FBEN
Hong Kong - - 73,216,000 73,216,000
2019 —ZE-NEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H FEM FE=R wEt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
P TT BT P IT P IT
Financial asset at FVPL: LFVPLZ R R EEE
— Club membership —BFEeE
— outside Hong Kong —BBTEIN 680,000 - - 680,000
— Forward currency —RHERER
contracts - 1,845,132 - 1,845,132
Leasehold land and buildings: A & A + i R iEF
Commercial - Hong Kong ¥ — &5 - 72,450,000 - 72,450,000
Owned buildings: BEEF:
Industrial — outside TE—HBEIN
Hong Kong — - 71,645,000 71,645,000
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HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 33. A EEFE#E)
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there BE_ZE-_ZEER-_FT—NF+-_A=
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value +—HBIEFEER  AFEBETEE R
measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair NE -z RV E T AERE BEE=
value measurements. BAFEEFEZEHEAREL -
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements F=H AT EEFTEZEE
2020 —E-EF
Land and
building:
Industrial —
outside
Hong Kong
T RETF :
IXE-FBEIH
HKS$
Description it BT
At beginning of the reporting period AR HA ) 71,645,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BREG 7T E (2,307,534)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other EEAFEBEIKESET A
comprehensive income Hit2mig A 373,231
Exchange realignment PE H X 3,505,303
At the end of the reporting period RIREHAR 73,216,000
Unrealised gains for the period included REARE B IEEEREMR SRS IR
in profit or loss held at the end of the HAEZABERIKES
reporting period -
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 33. A EEFTESE)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZRATFEEFEZRE(E)
(continued)
2019 —T-NF
Land and
building:
Industrial —
outside
Hong Kong
T RAETF
TITE-FEHEI
HK$
Description il BT
At beginning of the reporting period AR HA ) 71,694,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BREHBRZITE (2,320,334)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to other  FE{LAFBEUWZSET A
comprehensive income Hup 2wk A 3,255,095
Exchange realignment PE H 3K (983,761)
At the end of the reporting period REREHAR 71,645,000
Unrealised gains for the period included REARS A FEIE B S BR MR RS Hik
in profit or loss held at the end of the BAEZABRKE
reporting period _
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 fair value measurement

a)

b)

Forward currency contracts

The fair value of forward currency contracts is measured
by comparing the contracted forward rates and the
quoted forward exchange rates for the remaining
contractual maturity, by the same bank, which are
observable at the end of the reporting period.

Properties located in Hong Kong

The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally
qualified valuer, on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, which is based on market
observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted
for differences in key valuation attributes, such as size and
age to reflect the conditions of the subject properties.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

a)

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland China
was revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer, using depreciated
replacement cost approach. The valuer considered the
subject properties are specialised properties for which
there is no readily market observable transaction of
similar properties. The estimation of fair value of the
subject properties took into account their current cost of
replacement or reproduction, less deduction for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

33. X EEFE@H)
F-RPAFEEFEZBABER

fh{E T A
a) EHEREMR

b)

EHERARZATFEESLR
EHRRBITERREHR  ATH
RZBEBAREXRBTARE
MR 2 E A RWEEN Xma

=
= °

WREEZ Y
NREBZMEHBLEXEGE
RGEMEETRALRTISE
EMSTAEHGE BAUBEL
MBERNER S MRRZYE
AR ERBETEARNRE
M EELEREAE -

F=RAFEEFEZBABER

CREDp 3 s
a) WWRFAEAEZYR

MNAPEREZMERBIEE
EERMGEMEETRANES
BERAEREHNAE - HEMEE
MR BELE  THLTE
ABREZBRMERS - RibE
ZMEZRATFEEIZLEREN
EEREERA - HIREERL
kemaERANEE REL -
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33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level
3 fair value measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level
3 fair value measurements, are as follows:

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

33. XV EEE®E)

E-ZRATEEHBFAZEA
FUBEBARE > BLERRE
B
E=RATEENEFAL EARTH
2 A BUE Y BACEE RIS E A
i PSR S = MA T EES R
> AR A SIS 2T Y SURE
T

Fair value at 31 December  Valuation Sensitivity of fair value to
Description 2020 techniques Unobservable input changes in unobservable inputs
R-B-RF+=A TUBERAREL
g =+-BZAVEE fhEL%E TUBRERARE AYEEHRERSD
Asset
Property, plant and equipment
- Properties HK$73,216,000 Depreciated Estimated costs of Assuming other factors
included in land (2019: HK$71,645,000) replacement construction (HK$151 per sq. ft.)  remain unchanged,
and building: cost approach (2019: HK$148 per sq. ft.) of the higher the
Industrial outside similar type of industrial premises  estimated cost of
Hong Kong with adjustment on age, construction, the
condition, utility, etc. higher the fair value,
and vice versa.
BE
VERVTHE 73,216,000 7T MEBERAE BRIZMEEEER HR- RREMARTE - HIHREKA
“DEOEETHRET : (ZF—NF : 71,64500087) RIEERE L (T RERR B RTEEES R -
BRI EME (15187/FHR)

(ZB2-NE 14887 /TAR) °

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team comprising of executive directors and
finance manager reviewing estimation of fair value of the
properties. Fair values of the properties are estimated by the
independent professionally qualified valuer on an annual
basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results with the
executive directors and the Audit Committee are held twice a
year, for the Group’s interim and annual reporting.

SEMEERF

AEBYEZ A FEESHEERMB
TEREH/ AR - REMEZRAF
BESFHETEXEERMEMT
s - HERFRERNEFMAAKHE
MPHkFRERERESNERRES

ATam ©
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HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. EREMEE B ERBER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial instruments such as trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables and accrued liabilities and other payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short-term interest-
bearing debts to finance its working capital requirements
and interest-bearing debts over one year or internal
generated resources to finance its capital investments.
The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates and
the use of fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one year
will only be considered for capital investments and under
favourable market conditions.

AEBZIZSRIABEERRITR
HiEE  ARREREMER - %%
TRTAZIERNRAASELES
KES - AKENBZHERNEEE
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AEESRTAES R EZRMAFIE
Rk - NEER  EERRIRRBES
Bk - EFSHHARAETAETEZS
R AR - B
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

34. B AKREEEERBEK &)

(a) FEmEBzE)

ATRIEE TR EMEBRFD
2 MAXAEHESERE
BRT  NEBERRHRENCE
BEBNEERTE) ZHEED

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

o
2020 2019

“ECEfE —T-hEF
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/  Increase in Increase/ Increase in
(Decrease) in  profit after (Decrease) in profit after
basis points tax  basis points tax
HEY  BRE&EF EE  BRB®EN
g/ hd) D)/ % g/ Chd) i),/ &
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (9,900) 10 (11,416)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 9,900 (10) 11,416

(b) MR

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong
Kong which maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their
functional currency, but make sales in United States dollar
("USD") and purchases in RMB. (i) the majority of the
transactions of the operating units in Mainland China are
denominated in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced
from Hong Kong operating units. (iii) the operating unit
in Singapore which maintain cash in Singapore dollar, its
functional currency, but make sales in USD.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to USD and that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure to
USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant and
excluding the effect of the forward currency contracts,
of the Group’s profit after tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AREARSEERR AR
RANEEEE L BRI EEY
e WARNEEE EHE
MET(ET]) - MEBAAR
VR B G B AR B B
FTEUARER S ERASE
Tk aEEEEER  R)EE
SRI L LR R e D bt
& ARNEEE BHEN
ESIE R

MR ETTRSTTHB R A EEE
AREAEAEREAEEREE
kEfE  AEEMAZEHEITIN
BRBREN - AT RERTRE
THREMBEBHRRFAERTE
REREBARZTE  MINE
EXRAEHRABERS 22BN
T AEEBRREEN(REEE
ERABENATFEELRES)Z
BURE DT ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. KEMEEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) SMEERE PR (%)
Exposure to foreign currencies
SHMERR
2020 2019
—B0%fF “E-hEF
HKD RMB usD HKD RMB Usb
B N E BT AR e
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
B B B BT BT BT
Financial assets SREE 3 40,973,737 8,541,100 3 597,621 7,213,284
Financial liabilities tHERE (46,000,000) - (6,321,488) (46,029,563) - (6,687,452
Net exposure FER (45,999,997) 40,973,737 2,219,612 (46,029,560) 597,621 525,832
If the currencies strengthened % & X B EE 2 Thak
by 5% against the KM ER5% BBk
functional currency of the 7
respective entities, (A)/%m
(decrease)/increase
in profit after tax (1,920,500) 1,710,654 92,669  (1,921,734) 24,951 21,954
If the currencies weakened EEX X HBERE 2 A
by 5% against the EHER5% IRFik
functional currency of the 7
respective entities, #in/Cad)
increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax 1920500  (1710658)  (92,669) 1921734 (4951)  (21,954)
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk

34. B AKREEEERBEK &)

(c) EERMR

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net
of impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to
credit risk without taking into account the value of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. Invoices
are normally payable within 60 days of issuance, except
for certain well-established customers, where the terms
are extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly reviewed by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the Group’s
own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 58% (2019: 51%) of the
balance representing a receivable from a single customer
(2019: single customer), which was derived from sales by
the precision parts and components segment.

REFEM BN KERN S RE
EREESINRRERBE KX
AEBEOEERR - X R R
s B EME MR E M EEIEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

34. M AKREEEERBEK &)

() FEERBRE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised by
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment. The expected loss rate used in
the provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past three years
and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix is
summarised below.

FEWRRTE ()

AEENEFPEHBEZNERPA
X - W AR IR KR R R R B D
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. KEMEEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWRE &)
As at 31 December 2020 R=Z=-ZFF+=-A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
RPEBER AIREE BiERE FERE
% HK$ HK$
Not past due i A 180 HA 0 69,091,599 - No &
Less than 1 month past due 3 &3> —1{& A 0 21,699,042 - No #&
1 to 3 months past due  #HI—Z= ={# A 0 2,041,109 - No #&
3 to 6 months past due  #EI=ZE5{EA 0 271,075 = No &
1 to 2 years past due B —EWE 100 254,979 254,979 Yes B

93,357,804 254,979

As at 31 December 2019 R-E—h&E+—A=+—H~H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
TEEAE R HRERTEE EREEE EERE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not past due (i A8 A 0 50,484,711 - No f&
Less than 1 month past due #1H3 7 —1{& A 0 16,761,447 = No #&
1 to 3 months past due  #HI—Z= =& A 0 5,309,100 = No £
3 to 6 months past due  BHEI=Z ;<1 A 0 611,806 - No %
1 to 2 years past due BH—FEMF 100 254,979 254,979 Yes B
Over 5 years past due BEARFA L 100 822,410 822,410 Yes B

74,244,453 1,077,389

BRHEERZERERAR =Y
TECREER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

34. M AKREEEERBEK &)

() FEERBRE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$254,979 (2019: HK$1,077,389) on the
trade receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for
trade receivables is summarised below.

YRR (41)
R-F-FE+-A=+-8
745 30 5 PR TR 5 6
ER(=T 0T ) -

A _E_FF+_A=+—8"

N5 E B U BR TH T BB B 18 B
5254,979%8 t( = & — h F -
1,077,389/8 7 ) ° FEWBRIB S B

B EBRalmT

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of year REH] 1,077,389 822,410
Increase in allowance Bl 212 - 254,979
Amount written off S B HIE (822,410) -
At end of year RER 254,979 1,077,389

Other receivables B EK 5 E

The Group considers that the other receivables have
low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past
3 years (2019: 3 years) and the financial position of
the counterparties by reference to, among others, their
management or audited accounts and available press
information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case.
The management of the Group considers the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into
account the financial position and credit quality of the
counterparties.

K%IMEE%EWMEE’JF”
R BIE - ERERALESEEA
BiTE ’]iﬁi/}\b%%{fmﬁbj}f
08 KRB AR BRI o M FE UK
HRREATZEANEHEE
EtEstE - Wk TR HER -

EEFTEHREESE  A&EE
EREBABE=ZF(ZZ—AN
F:=F)INELEREEBHEL
BRE AP EARR  HhaE
REHEEE N LRZERE KA
BRTEER  WREGEBE AR
TE Y AT BE 15 R 2= K 3 5 AC T FE
TEHRBELCBEMRNELFHE -
NEAZESREEREOMR
AREBEERTHENERLR - &
ERETHFBRAREEE X
% AEBEREBERAEZSTSH
BEEMEHEEBBRITTERK -
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.

BE_Z-_ZH+-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

34. B AKREEEERBEK &)

() EERBRE)
Bt EWFHIE (&)
FAMELZERETEZREAR

Liquidity risk (d) REBESREE
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and AREBRBEHRAGTLRITE
derivative financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting NREEAE ZIETERITAES
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments mEENT
is as follows:
2020 2019
k- 2 ZEnE
After After After After
Within 1 year but 2 years but Within 1 year but 2 years but
Total 1 yearor within within Total  1yearor within within
amount on demand 2 years 5 years amount  on demand 2 years 5 years
-FRs -FRE REKE —FRy —FRE  RERE
#a RER RER hFh a5 REX MER R
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

A7 A7 A7

BT A B A B

Non-derivative: FiTER

Trade payables A 52,030,114 52,030,114 - - 36,254,341 36,254,341 - -

Financial liabilities included in B4Rt & B RE{

accrued liabilties and other  ERZTEZ £RA(E

payables (note 22) (Bzk22) 9547977 9547977 - - 5318195 5318195 - -

Interest-bearing bank FERORE

borrowings 11,366,680 11,366,680 - - 12133526 12,133,526 - -

Lease liabilities figak 970,726 843,296 127,430 - 2507984 1543074 839,187 125723
73,915,497 73,788,067 127,430 - 56,214,046 55,249,136 839,187 125,723

Capital management (e) EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

AEEEREANEERRERRF
BARBNFELER N LR
BREMNEALE  UXEEEH
BRMBRREREANEE -

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

34. M AKREEEERBEK &)

(e) EXREE(E)

AEBeRNREHERRZ(ER
HEARBYHEFELAE - B
BEBRNHBEARE  A5E%K
SHEXNTERROBE - &E
BATRRIBETHRMD - KAE

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The

Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, accrued
liabilities and other payables less bank balances and
cash. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

B FEE @I INE
KER - RBE_T_ZTFR_-
E-NF+A=+—HBILFE
N EHEEREANER KX
NOBRE EAE (L & E

AEBERAEAABLRERE
BEARRBR - ETVERFER AR
BAMEBRFENE - BRFE
ERGEERTLEAMES  HE
BE - BAERER EBfAERHE
ity RS R IR - W HIBR SRIT 4G B8R K
RBe  BABEARRABHEAE AR
s - RBEPRZELRARE

FSUNNE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
HK$ HK$
BT P IT

Interest-bearing bank and other ERRITREMEE
borrowings 11,345,750 12,040,876
Lease liabilities HEBE 945,243 2,400,456
Trade payables FERTERIE 52,030,114 36,254,341
Accrued liabilities and other payables &=t 8 (& & E 4th fE <t 3 0E 41,303,870 33,812,113
Less: Bank balances and cash B RITER RS (85,709,850)  (51,505,394)
Net debt BIRFE 19,915,127 33,002,392
Total equity RERAEER 350,393,862 286,305,666
Total capital and net debt RERREEFE 370,308,989 319,308,058
Gearing ratio BRBELE 5% 10%
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SREPTBHRERMFE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_Z-_TF+t-_A=+—HALFE
Year ended 31 December 2020

35. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

35. D RAIARA 2 B ISR &R

POSITION
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
Mo BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AR ZIKE 197,684,438 185,588,698
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits BRFIE e Rk
and other receivables E b & IR 15,801,910 273,937
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEER 227,860 213,387
16,029,770 487,324
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE=t & (& K H i & B 265,820 338,320
Due to subsidiaries JE < B B X R 7RIE 107,570,259 90,481,877
Tax payables eI 23,558 50,000
107,859,637 90,870,197
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (91,829,867)  (90,382,873)
Net assets BEFE 105,854,571 95,205,825
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 26 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves A 28(b) 79,154,091 68,505,345
Total equity MR 105,854,571 95,205,825

HHBRARER B —F=A=+=H
BESSUEREEEMS - WH TIALR
REE

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2021 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FELE A BRA&E
Director Director
EF S

BRERERERAT
—R-REEH
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE-_Z-_ZTHF+-_A-+ALFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out

RTAAEENBEREMBEE %458
BENAGHE @ LR L AHEZS
BEHMBEHEK -

below.
RESULTS E5
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BE-RE —_ThEF T )N\F —T—t& —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT FH&IT T T
REVENUE A 341,758 345,581 463,655 422,925 431,017
PROFIT/(LOSS) BB RTE R,

BEFORE TAX (&518) 77,609 22,386 5,109 9,146 (8,302)
TAX ] (10,699) (5,727) (3,884) (854) 192
PROFIT/(LOSS) FiN/NEIE 2 =N

ATTRIBUTABLE TO FrEs&

OWNERS OF THE (E518)

COMPANY 66,910 16,659 1,225 8,292 (8,110)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

31 December
t=A=+—-AH
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEFE —FT—NF —T-N\F —T—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT Tt FHIT T
Total assets BB E 486,665 401,193 425,565 429,413 378,790
Total liabilities FEN=Rr (136,271)  (114,887)  (151,991)  (162,574)  (145,729)
350,394 286,306 273,574 266,839 233,061
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